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HIGHLIGHTS AND CHALLENGES

Turnover (R’000)

Operating profit (R’000)
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HEPS 

 3,6%
to 61,89 cents
(2016: 15,5% (59,74 cents))

Cash on hand of 

R306,6m
(2016: R243,3m)

Total comprehensive  
income for the year 

 8,5%
(2016: R162,6m)

Gross profit

 8,4%
(2016: R548,1m)

NAV

382,53
cents
(2016: 351,14 cents)

Dividend per share

25,0
cents
(2016: 23,1 cents)

Special dividend

10,0 
cents 
(2016: 10,0 cents)
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

In compiling this Report, we are guided by King III, the 

International Integrated Reporting (IR) Framework and the need 

to comply with disclosure requirements of the South African 

Companies Act, the JSE Listings Requirements, SAICA financial 

reporting guides issued by the Accounting Practice Committee 

and with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). 

The Board is currently reviewing the conversion to the new 

King IV Code and will incorporate this in the 2018 Integrated Report.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the integrity of this 

Report, has applied its collective mind to this Report and, in their 

opinion, it addresses all material issues and presents fairly the 

integrated performance of the Group.

MATERIALITY
This Report aims to provide a balanced, accurate and accessible 

assessment of our strategy, performance and prospects in relation 

to the material financial, economic, social, environmental and 

governance issues. These material focus issues which were 

determined taking into account both quantitative and qualitative 

criteria, are the key concerns of our stakeholders and matters that 

are material to our strategic objectives, risks and the sustainability 

of our business model.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Report includes forward-looking statements that include 

assumptions, uncertainties and similar risks and, thus, the actual 

result may be different to that anticipated. Words such as believe, 

anticipate, intend, seek, will, may, could, and the like identify these 

forward-looking statements, but not exclusively so. Forward-

looking statements only apply as at the date of this Report and ARB 

does not undertake to update these forward-looking statements 

other than in the half year or full year results announcements.

ASSURANCE
ARB applies a combined assurance model that seeks to match 

the risk areas affecting the Group with assurance obtained from 

management, together with internal and external risk assurance 

providers. Management provides the Board with assurance that 

it has implemented and monitored the Group’s Risk Management 

Plan and that it is integrated into the day-to-day activities.

The internal audit function, overseen by the Group’s Audit 

Committee, assesses the effectiveness of ARB’s systems of 

internal controls and risk management.

PKF Durban provides external assurance on the fair presentation 

of the Annual Financial Statements. Their scope does not include 

any financial or operating indicators contained elsewhere in this 

Integrated Report. The Group’s BEE compliance is also externally 

assessed and audited.

The Audit Committee, as well as the Board, have considered the 

exposure to sustainability risks and have concluded that it is not 

necessary to engage an external assurance provider to provide 

assurance on this Integrated Report.

The Board of Directors of ARB Holdings Ltd (“ARB”) is pleased to present this Integrated 

Report for the year ended 30 June 2017. This Report marks an evolution towards enhanced 

integrated reporting, and seeks to provide our shareholders, clients, employees, investors, 

analysts and other interested parties with a transparent and understandable assessment of 

the context in which we operate, our strategies, risks, how we manage our governance, social 

and environmental responsibilities and the performance of the Group for the year.

This Integrated Report is also available online at www.arbhold.co.za together with the 

King III compliance register. The Board welcomes feedback on this Report from stakeholders. 

Please contact the Chief Financial Officer at grants@arbhold.co.za with any  

questions or queries.



|  ARB Integrated Report 20174

Getting to know ARB

GROUP AT A GLANCE

ARB Electrical Wholesalers

ARB Connect

ARB Global

Elektro Vroomen

CED

ELECTRICAL  
DIVISION

Eurolux

Cathay Lighting

Crabtree J.V.

LIGHTING  
DIVISION

ARB Holdings 

ARB IT Solutions

CORPORATE  
DIVISION

ARB Electrical Wholesalers is one of 

Southern Africa‘s largest distributors 

of electrical products.

Operates out of 22 branches across 

South Africa, with presence in all  

nine provinces.

Provides a wide range of internationally 

recognised and SABS approved products 

across three main categories: power 

and instrumentation cable, overhead 

line equipment and conductors, and 

general low-voltage products.

ARB Holdings holds a 100% interest in 

ARB Global and CED and a 74% interest 

in ARB Electrical Wholesalers, which in 

turn owns 100% of Elektro Vroomen.

Eurolux is a leading importer and 

distributor of energy-saving, LED, 

halogen and fluorescent lamps, light 

fittings, electrical accessories and 

ancillary products including fans and 

lighting components.

Operates out of two custom-designed 

distribution centres in Johannesburg 

and Cape Town and sells to retail 

chains, independent DIY and hardware 

chains, as well as to resellers such  

as specialised lighting shops and 

electrical wholesalers.

ARB Holdings holds a 60% interest in 

Eurolux, which in turn owns 100% of 

Cathay Lighting.

ARB Holdings is an investment holding 

company for businesses involved in the 

trading and distribution of electrical, 

lighting and related products.

ARB’s property portfolio, which includes 

14 properties valued at R188m, is 

housed under the Corporate Division.

The Corporate Division performs a 

centralised treasury function for the 

underlying operating subsidiaries  

and provides strategic leadership to  

the Group.

ARB Holdings holds a 100% interest in 

ARB IT Solutions, which provides the 

Group and other third party clients with 

specialist IT software and hardware 

services and support.
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OUR PRESENCE

ORGANISATIONAL CHART
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Wholesalers  

(Pty) Ltd

74%
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Consolidated  

Electrical  
Distributors (“CED”)
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60%

ARB HOLDINGS LTD (JSE)Batsomi Power  
(Pty) Ltd

26%

Directors of  
the Company

40%

Cathay Lighting  
(Pty) Ltd
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Elektro Vroomen  
(Pty) Ltd

100%

Corporate DivisionLighting Division

Electrical Division
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Getting to know ARB

GROWTH AND EXPANSION STRATEGY

ARB’s growth and expansion strategy is focused on the following:

New branch openings 

and strategic acquisitions 

to further expand the 

branch network and 

enhance the proximity  

to market.

Product extension 

through the introduction 

of new products.

Market share growth 

through securing 

additional customers.

Entering new markets 

through broadening the 

product offering.

Further diversification 

through the acquisition  

of trading and distribution 

businesses in related 

industrial/consumer 

products.

ELECTRICAL 
DIVISION

CORPORATE 
DIVISION

LIGHTING 
DIVISION
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The Group services predominantly the South African electrical 

supply market with a strategy to expand into sub-Saharan Africa 

(“SSA”). Within the SSA market, South Africa has the lion’s share 

of the power generation capacity, with an installed base of 

45 GigaWatts (“GW”) compared to Zambia (2,3 GW), Angola  

(1,15 GW), Botswana (0,9 GW) and Namibia (0,47 GW). Although 

SSA currently consumes less power than Brazil, by 2040 its 

demand is projected to reach a level equal to 2010 consumption 

of both Latin America and India combined. With such growth 

rates, the industry should enjoy many years of growth.

This electrical supply market is segmented into several dimensions: 

Power size segments – “low voltage” (less than 1 kiloVolt), 

“medium voltage” (1KV to 132KV), “high voltage” (132KV to 

400KV) and a limited “very high voltage” sector (greater than 

765KV). In South Africa, these segments are largely determined 

by Eskom where Eskom’s Distribution Division manages the 

medium voltage sector and their Transmission Division manages 

their high voltage business.

Distribution channels to (1) the “formal market” generally power 

supply utilities (such as Eskom, Zesco, Copperbelt Electrical 

Company, etc.), municipalities and large users such as mines 

which tend to procure directly from the Original Equipment 

Manufacturers (“OEMs”) on long-term contracts and (2) the 

“informal market” comprising electrical wholesalers, cable 

traders, large retail chain stores and other general retailers 

which sell to electrical contractors and end-users on a transaction 

by transaction basis.

Product types are largely categorised into (1) cable (copper and 

aluminium power cable, communication cable, etc.), (2) Overhead 

Line (“OHL”) products (cable, structures and metalware for 

overhead line power supply) and (3) “low voltage” (a very large 

category of equipment and accessories ranging from commodities 

to specialist products covering wire, switches, sockets, conduit, 

cable management systems, light fittings, lamps, solar 

accessories, transformers, switchgear, tools, etc.) used by the 

informal market.

The Group services predominantly the informal market with 

cable, OHL and low voltage products sourced from (1) local 

manufacturers (Aberdare Cables, CBI, South Ocean Cables, 

Crabtree, Pfisterer, etc.), (2) local agents of international 

manufacturers (Schneider, ABB, Legrand, Osram, Siemens, 3M, 

etc.) and (3) products imported directly from overseas (Chint, 

ACCC, South Wire, etc.).

These products are sold to large, medium and small electrical 

contractors, commercial and industrial projects and maintenance 

users, retail chain stores (Eurolux), DIY users, and the like. While 

there are very limited direct sales to Eskom, mines and 

municipalities, the lion’s share of the electrical contactor’s sales 

are to these three categories of customers. 

The Group’s largest competitors are cable traders and other 

electrical wholesalers, several of which have formed a collective 

buying group, and occasionally the Group’s own suppliers.

Standards play a pivotal role in the quality of products which are 

sourced and distributed by the Group. In South Africa, there are 

three sets of stringent laws that enforce standards and 

criminalise non-compliance: the Occupational Health and Safety 

Act (OSH Act of 1993) with its own “Electrical Installation 

Regulations” requiring certificates of compliance for all 

“premises”, the National Regulator Compliance Standards Act 

(NRCS Act of 2008) and the South African National Standards Act 

(SANS Act of 2008). SABS/SANS are responsible for publishing 

all standards which are based on local adaptions to the 

International Elektro-technical Commission (“IEC”) standards. 

Once a standard is adopted by SABS, the NRCS reviews the 

standard and compiles a VC standard, which is gazetted by the 

Department of Trade and Industry. A Letter Of Authority (“LOA”) 

is required to confirm a product’s compliance with VCs.  

A Regulators Compliance Certificate (“RCC”) is required 

confirming compliance with SANS codes (such as the Wiring 

Code SANS 10142). LOAs and RCCs are valid for three-year 

periods and can be extended by another two years. 

Manufacturers and importers require LOAs/RCCs for products 

covered by these standards. These standards are enforced by the 

government (Customs, border police, the NRCS, Department of 

Labour, municipal inspectors, etc.) and local “watchdog” 

organisations such as Safe House and the Electrical Contractors 

Association (“ECA”), which requires accredited members to 

maintain these standards. Eskom also has its own adaptions to 

these SABS standards, which it enforces in its own procurement 

processes and those of its electrical contractors.

While all countries in SSA do have similar quality standards, 

enforcement and policing in the informal market is less vigorous 

and neighbouring countries have seen large volumes of imported 

low-quality products flooding the markets in recent years. Some 

countries like Zambia are now believed to be wanting to return to 

better quality standards.
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Getting to know ARB

BUSINESS MODEL

Credit funding

Lo
ca

ti
on

Range

  Thorough customer 
knowledge

  Backed by credit insurance
  Any store – one account
  Central control, local 

relationship

  One-stop shop
  Wide range for target 

customers
Cables | Overhead line
Low voltage | Lighting
Renewables

  Close and 
convenient

  Simple picking 
solutions

  Web store 
alternative

STRATEGIC 
PLANNING 
MODEL

TO SUPPORT, SOLVE AND SIMPLIFY
OUR PURPOSE

INPUTS/CAPITALS BUSINESS ACTIVITIES/VALUE ADDS

HUMAN CAPITAL

Skills of our workforce: whose skills and efforts enable us to 
meet customer needs

Trading ability of our traders

Ongoing training and skills transfer

Initiatives to “make a plan” and assist a customer

Attracting, retaining engaged employees

INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL

Product knowledge: customer value add

Sourcing knowledge: best product at fair price

Standards and specification knowledge

Brands and brand awareness

SOCIAL CAPITAL

Relationships with: 

Customers 

Suppliers

Communities

Funders

FINANCE CAPITAL

Investments in assets required to deliver against our objectives

–  Right stock range to meet customer requirements

–  At locations convenient to where customer needs it

– Provide credit to customers to fund projects

C
ustom

er know
ledge

Logistics

Sourcing

  Procurement  
advantage

  Procurement  
automation

  Supplier knowledge/ 
support

  Skilled central  
procurement staff

  Collection and delivery
  Own delivery fleet
  Central DC branches
  “Connect” stores close  

to customers

  Needs and  
requirements

  Focus on service
  Make a plan to  

solve a problem
  Technical 

assistance
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Credit fu
nding

Location

Range

  Thorough customer 
knowledge

  Backed by credit insurance
  Any store – one account
  Central control, local 

relationship

  One-stop shop
  Wide range for target 

customers
Cables | Overhead line
Low voltage | Lighting
Renewables

  Close and 
convenient

  Simple picking 
solutions

  Web store 
alternative

STRATEGIC 
PLANNING 
MODEL

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES/VALUE ADDS OUTPUTS/OUTCOMES

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

Repeat business

Problems solved

Stronger brands

Long-term relationships

CHALLENGED AND ENGAGED STAFF

Trained and developed

Happy work environment

Share in wealth generation

LOW IMPACT ON THE ENVIRONMENT

Low carbon footprint

Solution for disposal of problem products

Low water use and contamination

Electrifying the country

PAYMENT OF TAXES

Contribute to country development

Improved social and economic wellbeing

Good corporate citizen

UPLIFTMENT OF COMMUNITIES

Financial support

Time support

Product support

RETURNS TO FUNDERS

Secure return on investments

OUR VALUES

PUT PEOPLE FIRST MAKE A PLAN STAY DRIVEN STAY HUMBLE

Credit fu
nding

Location

Range

  Thorough customer 
knowledge

  Backed by credit insurance
  Any store – one account
  Central control, local 

relationship

  One-stop shop
  Wide range for target 

customers
Cables | Overhead line
Low voltage | Lighting
Renewables

  Close and 
convenient

  Simple picking 
solutions

  Web store 
alternative

STRATEGIC 
PLANNING 
MODEL
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Getting to know ARB

SHARE TRADING STATISTICS

Month
High 

(cents)
Low 

(cents)
Close

(cents)
Volume 

(000’s)
Value 

(R000’s) VWAP

July 2016 560 470 560 465 2 407 517,04

August 2016 605 475 605 2 364 12 571 531,75

September 2016 610 470 590 7 902 47 406 599,90

October 2016 630 550 630 1 725 10 115 586,28

November 2016 630 550 620 682 4 175 612,31

December 2016 630 570 630 687 4 158 605,67

January 2017 630 555 630 108 666 618,03

February 2017 680 595 650 1 472 9 289 631,09

March 2017 670 585 667 1 531 9 641 629,83

April 2017 668 550 649 3 969 24 439 615,67

May 2017 649 558 635 259 1 602 617,58

June 2017 640 520 630 237 1 483 626,14

12 months 680 470 630 21 402 127 952 587,86

Number of shares traded as a % of 

 � Free float 20,24%

 � Total shares 3,39%

Market capitalisation (million) 1 480m

Share performance

Opening price July 2016 550

Closing price June 2017 630

% gained for the year 14,5%

PE ratio (EPS) 10,1

ARB share price Share index
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A JOINT NOTE FROM OUR CHAIRMAN AND CEO

OVERVIEW
While the South African economy continues a “no- or  

low-growth” trajectory, the tumultuous political events of the 

past year have intensified an already fragile situation and 

impacts on investor and consumer confidence, which has 

negatively impacted on businesses such as ours. 

During the second half of our financial year the Group had to 

contend with the fact that the country was in a technical 

recession as well as a downgrade of South Africa’s sovereign 

ratings to “junk” status. This had a negative effect on consumer 

confidence and the sales to our retail chain store customers were 

negatively impacted. Furthermore, the unproductive April holiday 

period seemed to stall any fragile momentum in the economy at 

that stage. This reduction was noticeable in our sales figures for 

the month, which were not “caught up” in May. The ZAR exchange 

rate has remained volatile during the year under review and 

affects both divisions. 

Municipal spend, after the municipal elections, did decrease  

as predicted and Eskom spending levels have remained low.  

In addition, delays in payments from parastatals had a negative 

Alan R Burke 
Non-Executive Chairman

Billy Neasham 
Chief Executive Officer

Resilient results in a challenging economic environment.
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effect on our contractor customers’ cash flows, their ability to 

pay on time and their credit ratings, which reduced their ability to 

buy from us. 

Within this environment, we also experienced a decrease in large 

projects and the few that did materialise, were won on the 

thinnest of margins. Small to medium contracts, whilst also in 

decline, were still available but, because of the increased 

competition, were fiercely contested. With this reduced workload, 

suppliers that had excess production capacity became more 

aggressive and pricing levels were commensurately affected. We 

were, however, successful with some export projects that 

compensated to some degree for this shortfall.

Given this environment, the Group has shown character  

by producing resilient results in a challenging economic 

environment.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
There was no growth in the Group’s revenue in 2017, which was 

unchanged at R2,5bn, mainly because of a slight decline in the 

Electrical Segment revenue being compensated for by a marginal 

increase in the Lighting Segment. Margins decreased slightly, 

mainly attributable to the change in product sales mix.

Other income has been enhanced by the R4,6m surplus on the 

disposal of our East London property to our neighbour, Mercedes-

Benz, to facilitate their expansion plans. 

Overheads continue to be well managed. The 12% increase, after 

eliminating the goodwill impairment in the prior year, is 

attributable to the expansion in the Electrical Division, with four 

new ARB Connect branches being operational for a full 

12 months, and additional warehousing secured for the Lighting 

Division’s product expansion. 

Operating profit decreased 1% to R214,5m (2016: R227,2m), with 

an operating margin of 8,6% (2016: 8,7%).

The increase in interest income (elaborated on below), and the 

reduction in the interest attributable to the unwinding of the 

discount on the put option liability, compensated for the decline 

in operating income. As a result, we are pleased to report an 

increase of 3,6% in headline earnings per share (“HEPS”)  

to 61,89 cents per share, compared to the 59,74 cents in the 

prior period.

The Group’s continued focus on working capital management, 

particularly the improvement in the Lighting Division, has 

ensured that our operations remain cash generative, with net 

interest received continuing to increase, despite paying out 

annual and special dividends totalling R93,39m (2016: R86,34m). 

Net working capital at 23,1% of revenue (2016: 22,3%) is still 

within the targeted range of 20% to 25% of revenue. 

Inventory levels increased 7,3% mainly in the Electrical Division 

in anticipation of a potential strike in the metal industry, which 

would have disrupted supplies. The Electrical Division remains 

within the Group’s inventory policy established to limit inventory 

losses in a potentially volatile copper price environment.  

The Lighting Division has taken corrective action to improve 

inventory management but is cognisant of the need of meeting 

Dividend

25,0 cents
per share 

Special dividend

10,0 cents
per share 
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A JOINT NOTE FROM OUR CHAIRMAN AND CEO (continued)

the “in stock” requirements of the major retailers that it supplies. 

Management remains committed to ensuring that inventory is 

managed within the Group’s targeted parameters. 

The trade receivables book decreased 4,4%. Despite a challenging 

credit environment, and the general decline in revenue in the last 

quarter of the financial year, there has been an improvement  

in the management and control of debtors’ collections.  

Both divisions continue to maintain credit insurance on their 

trade receivables.

Net capital expenditure for the financial year amounted to 

R12,0m (2016: R10,3m), after offsetting the proceeds of the 

disposal of the East London property of R12,4m.

The Group’s after-tax return on average equity in the current year 

is 16,67% as compared to the 17,5% achieved in the prior period.

Given the Group’s continued strong cash generation, its  

ungeared balance sheet and net cash resources of R306,6m, the 

Board approved, in line with the dividend policy, an annual 

dividend of 25,0 cents per share (2016: 23,1 cents). The Board  

further approved a special dividend of 10,0 cents per share  

(2016: 10,0 cents), in order to return excess cash to shareholders. 

Both the annual and special dividends will be paid to shareholders 

on Monday, 11 September 2017.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

 Electrical Division 
  Revenue down 0,5% and operating profit  

down 4,5%

This division’s revenue is impacted directly by the lack of any real 

economic growth or infrastructure spend and the volatile 

commodity prices, particularly copper. As a result, the business 

has focused on attempting to gain market share by expanding the 

ARB Connect stores and securing orders from the limited project 

opportunities both locally and in neighbouring countries.  

The market is extremely competitive, and major suppliers are 

often competitors on these large projects. Given these 

circumstances, the marginal decline in revenue is commendable. 

While there have been delays in the roll out of the electrification 

projects by Eskom, there are early signs that these projects are 

receiving renewed emphasis.

Trading margins remain under pressure in the Electrical Division, 

particularly in the sale and distribution of power cable products, 

which have fortunately been cushioned by the growth in revenue 

from the higher margin “low voltage” products. 

Despite the pressure on trading margins, careful management of 

expenditure has enabled this division to report an operating 

margin of 6,7%.

This business will continue to expand its geographical footprint 

with the opening of its Connect stores in convenient locations to 

gain access to the higher-margin electrical accessories market. 

A more detailed review of the Electrical Division appears on 

page 20 of this Integrated Report.

 Lighting Division 
  Revenue up 0,8% and operating profit  

down 3,5%

During the year, the Lighting Division’s revenue was impacted by 

the volatile exchange rate, particularly over the December period 

when prices to retailers remained fixed, and by the elimination of 

the 20% duty on the LED lamps in January 2017. Concerns about 

consumer spending power in South Africa as evidenced by the 

recent release of retail sales data, also impacts the Lighting 

Division, particularly given its revenue focus, which is from these 

major retail chains.

This division, however, continues to show market share gains, 

despite the competitive environment in which it operates.  

This has been achieved by expanding its product range to 

established customers. Steps are being taken to make the 

offering more appealing to electrical wholesalers, including the 

division’s fellow subsidiary.

Gross trading margins were negatively impacted by the volatile 

exchange rate and the concomitant price reductions necessitated 

certain products to the major retailers. Challenges continue with 

respect to delays in the issuing of Letters of Authority by the 

National Regulator of Compliance Specifications. Overheads 

remained under control, which resulted in the operating margin 

decreasing to 11,3% of revenue compared to 11,8% in the 2016 

financial year.

This division will continue to expand its product range offering to 

existing clients, while pursuing new client opportunities wherever 

possible. A more detailed review of the Lighting Division appears 

on page 24 of this Integrated Report.

DIRECTORATE
There have been no changes to the Board during the last year. 

OUTLOOK
While there is no discernible indication of any short-term 

improvement in the South African economy, we are confident that 
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ARB has positioned itself, in its various markets, to continue the 

strategy of gaining market share and growing key customers and 

product base. While we do not foresee much infrastructure 

spend taking place in the next financial year, the Electrical 

Division plans to continue with the expansion of its branch 

network to achieve organic growth. 

In the medium term, we are expecting that municipal and Eskom 

spend on electrification will improve in the run up to the 2019 

elections and the Group is well-positioned to take an active role 

in this development.

As indicated above, the Group has sold the existing East London 

property from which the Electrical Division currently trades.  

A new vacant site was acquired prior to the year-end, with 

construction of the new premises scheduled for occupation by 

end October 2017. This location is more conveniently situated 

closer to the East London business area, which will improve 

customer convenience.

In addition, the Group took transfer in July 2017 of a 45 000m2 

vacant site in Midrand, for the construction of a 44 000m2 facility. 

We will relocate the Electrical Division’s Alrode branch to this 

facility and develop a distribution centre for the planned expansion 

of this division in the Gauteng region. It is anticipated that the 

facility will cost an estimated R100m, which will be funded out of 

internal funds and will only become operational in 2019.

While no acquisitions were completed during the financial year, 

the Board continues to evaluate potential acquisitions to further 

diversify the business and its product offering.

APPRECIATION
Our thanks to our fellow Directors for their contribution, in both 

wisdom and support, which ensures that the strategy remains 

sound and that ARB maintains high standards of corporate 

governance. On behalf of the Board, we thank the executive 

management team, as well as each of the over 900 ARB staff 

members, for their commitment in making this financial year a 

success. Lastly, to our customers, suppliers, business partners 

and shareholders, we wish to express our sincere appreciation 

for your continued support.

Alan R Burke Billy Neasham

Non-Executive Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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Billy qualified as a Chartered Accountant in 

1980 and has been involved with ARB 

Electrical Wholesalers since 1988 as the 

audit partner and professional advisor, 

initially with KMPG, and then with Griffith & 

Aiken. Billy joined ARB in June 2000 as 

Financial Director responsible for the high 

level of financial discipline instilled 

throughout the Group. He was appointed 

CEO in February 2015.

Ralph holds a Bachelor of Commerce 

degree, a Master of Business Leadership 

degree, and has attended the Executive 

Programme at Stanford University, USA. He 

is an accredited associate of the Institute for 

Independent Business International. Ralph 

was a co-founder of Iliad Africa Ltd and 

served as CEO from 1998 until his retirement 

in 2008. Prior to joining Iliad, Ralph held 

various executive positions including as 

Managing Director of subsidiaries within the 

Unihold and Malbak groups, and as a 

Director of Everite Ltd and Group Five Ltd. 

He currently serves on the boards of several 

listed companies including Mustek Ltd, 

Calgro M3 Holdings Ltd, Accentuate Ltd and 

Sentula Mining Ltd.

Alan trained as an apprentice electrician, 

which proved to be the springboard for his 

involvement in the electrical wholesale 

industry. He founded ARB in 1980 in 

Richards Bay and has been the driving 

force behind its success to date. Alan has 

played an integral part in formulating and 

executing the Group’s growth strategy and 

remains ARB’s largest shareholder.

Founder and Chairman
Non-Executive Director
Years of service to the Group: 37 years

CA(SA)
Chief Executive Officer
Years of service to the Group: 17 years

BCom, MBL
Lead Independent Non-Executive Director
Years of service to the Group: 7 years

Alan R Burke (63) Billy Neasham (60) Ralph Patmore (65)

Remuneration and 
Nominations Committee  Risk Committee Audit Committee

Social and Ethics  
Committee
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James qualified with PricewaterhouseCoopers 

and retired in 2009 after 40 years’ service. He 

was the engagement partner of many of the 

firm’s larger clients, led their KwaZulu-Natal 

Assurance practice and represented  

the region as a member of the National 

Assurance Executive. James also serves as 

an independent non-executive on the 

Combined Motor Holdings Ltd Board, as  

well as some smaller unlisted companies 

and trusts.

Simon qualified as a Chartered Accountant 

and completed his articles at Pim Goldby 

(now Deloitte). In 1984 he achieved an MBA 

from the Graduate School of Business at 

the University of Cape Town. Simon is the 

CEO, Chairman and sole shareholder  

of Shave & Gibson Group (Pty) Ltd, an 

independent manufacturer of board 

packaging and the largest manufacturer  

of cheques and other security printed 

products in Africa. He is also the Chairman 

of the Board of Directors and a Trustee of 

Clifton College, as well as the Chairman  

of Centenary Homes for Aged (incorporating 

Bartle House and Blaine House). Simon 

holds directorships in various investment 

companies.

Grant qualified as a Chartered Accountant in 

1986 at KPMG and spent two years in their 

Seattle, USA office on a rotational exchange 

programme. He was previously the financial 

director of four listed companies including 

Voltex, Powertech, SACMH and Winhold, 

and brings a wealth of financial, strategic, 

acquisitions and operational experience  

to the Group, including 15 years in the 

trading environment.

CA(SA)
Chief Financial Officer
Years of service to the Group: 2 years

CA(SA)
Independent Non-Executive Director
Years of service to the Group: 2 years

CA(SA), FCMA, MBA
Independent Non-Executive Director
Years of service to the Group: 10 years

Grant Scrutton (55) James S Dixon (65) Simon Downes (58)
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SEVEN-YEAR REVIEW
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Five-
year

CAGR* 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Profitability

Revenue (R’000) 6%  2 479 418  2 489 791  2 150 764  2 216 659  1 944 541  1 565 294  1 256 330 

Gross profit (R’000) 9%  594 412  548 114  517 305  526 950  425 120  307 152  234 831 

Gross profit % 24,0% 22,0% 24,1% 23,8% 21,9% 19,6% 18,7%

Operating profit (R’000) 7%  214 455  222 214  196 411  189 890  161 537  136 287  110 245 

Operating profit % 8,6% 8,9% 9,1% 8,6% 8,3% 8,7% 8,8%

Profit after tax (R’000) 9%  171 466  160 171  146 354  136 360  120 242  104 666  88 678 

Profit attributable to shareholders (R’000) 10%  146 592  135 577  121 505  110 277  99 755  85 311  72 016 

Headline earnings per share (cents) 10% 61,89 59,74 51,71 46,91  41,52 34,25  30,64 

Solvency and liquidity

Net asset value (R’000) 8%  898 940  825 188  757 897  696 924  648 674  570 186  527 327 

Net tangible asset value per share (cents) 10%  353,90  321,96 292,82 264,73  244,76 213,66  223,20 

Solvency ratio (total assets: total liabilities) 3,4 3,2 3,5 3,1 3,1 3,2 4,9

Current ratio (current assets:current liabilities) 2,9  3,5  3,8  3,2 3,1 3,5  4,5 

Net working capital as a % of revenue (%) 23% 22% 23% 20% 19% 21%** 18%

Inventory days (based on cost of sales) 91 83 87 85 82 69**  61 

Receivable days (based on revenue) 61 63 60 56 51 57**  49 

Payable days (based on cost of sales) 61 59 56 61 58 49**  42 

Cash flow

Cash generated by operating activities (R’000)  207 021  167 919  166 876  143 655  197 156  95 191  104 889 

Net cash on hand at year-end (R’000)  306 642  243 269  226 780  197 583  202 753  179 370  265 534 

Shareholder returns

Return on average shareholders’ funds 17,0% 17,1% 16,7% 16,4% 16,4% 14,5% 13,9%

Operations

Number of staff at year-end 947 917 944 849 793 676  457 

Number of branches at year-end – Electrical 21 20 18 18 19 15  15 

Dividends and distributions***

Dividend cover (times) 2,5 2,5 2,6 2,3 2,6 2,5 2,5

Dividends (cents per share) 11% 25,0 23,1 20,1 20,1 16,2 13,7 12,3

Special dividends (cents per share)  10,0  10,0  10,0  10,0 10,0  –   –  

Share performance

Number of ordinary shares in issue (‘000)  235 000  235 000  235 000  235 000  235 000  235 000  235 000 

Market capitalisation at year-end (R’000) 8%  1 480 500  1 292 500  1 410 000  1 576 850  1 092 750  916 500  813 100 

Share price:

  High (cents) 680 605 785 725 615 475  390 

  Low (cents) 470 450 575 450 380 270  225 

  Close (cents at 30 June) 8% 630 550 600 671 465 390  346 

* Five-year compound annual growth rate.
** Eurolux’s revenue and/or cost of sales for the six months ended 30 June 2012 have been annualised to enhance comparability.
*** (Adjusted)/declared after year-end from profits for this year.
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DIVISIONAL REVIEWS

Over 

20 000
products

Over 

6 000
customers

21 branches
(four new ARB Connect branches) 
in nine provinces

86 000m²
of warehousing, yard 
and sales offices
(15 branch properties owned by ARB Holdings) – 650 employees

ELECTRICAL WAREHOUSE HIGHLIGHTS

ELECTRICAL
DIVISION

Revenue (R’000)
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Level

 2 B-BBEE
Fleet of 

149 vehicles

Corporate social  
spend totalling 

R1 534 941
70
completed 
learnerships

Jason Burke
Sales Director

Blayne Burke
Chief Executive Officer

Shannon Bester
Financial Director
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OVERVIEW
The Electrical Division’s results continue to reflect the challenging, 

low growth environment with muted levels of infrastructure spend 

and subdued performance of the mining and manufacturing 

sectors. These factors, together with a deterioration in the credit 

environment, have made for a tough year.

Costs have been a key focus for management over the course of 

the last year, with core operational costs growing by single digits.  

This excludes the new ARB Connect branches costs, which were 

fully included in these results. Internal and external training 

costs grew significantly, along with depreciation and occupancy 

costs related to the new branches. 

Working capital management remains a major focus, given the 

current credit environment, which deteriorated further in this 

period. Strong growth in cash sales underpins the ARB Connect 

strategy and has assisted in this regard. Stocking efficiencies 

have improved. 

Existing branches made some revenue gains while there was a 

good revenue contribution from the new ARB Connect branches. 

The low levels of project activity contributed to margin pressure 

in the electrical cables business, as all participants continue to 

compete for market share. A resurgence of Eskom spend has 

been positive for the overhead line department, which focuses on 

the supply of materials used in the electrification of households 

and the distribution of power. Significant gains were made in the 

low voltage market, which was further enhanced by the new ARB 

Connect branches, allowing for improved penetration into the 

small to medium size contractors market in Johannesburg, 

Pretoria and Cape Town. This was bolstered by a new store 

opening in Pinetown in Durban during August 2016. 

Additional locations are being evaluated for more ARB Connect 

branches to further grow the presence of our outlets in more 

conveniently located areas where the small to medium sized 

contractors can purchase a wide range of products at competitive 

prices. Vacant land was acquired by the holding company 

subsequent to the financial year-end to develop a facility to 

relocate the Alrode branch. It is not anticipated that this facility 

will be completed prior to the first quarter of the 2019 

financial year.

Management looks forward to the opportunity of building on the 

foundations created in 2017 to improve on the results in the new 

2018 financial period.

DIVISIONAL REVIEWS (continued)
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Danie Esterhuizen of CED (2nd from the left) receiving the “rising star” award at Chints International Award Ceremony in Thailand.



Performance review

24 |  ARB Integrated Report 2017

LIGHTING 
DIVISION

Revenue (R’000)
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DIVISIONAL REVIEWS (continued)

Range reviews 
done with major chain 
customers

Pleasing growth in

Crabtree 
joint venture

4 132 
delivery addresses

2 356 
customers invoice accounts

EUROLUX HIGHLIGHTS
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Steve Palframan
Director

Peter Willig 
Chief Executive Officer

Shaun Bouchier
Marketing/Sales Director

338 valid LOAs
(“Letter of Authority”) 
(to import)

6 500 SKUs
(“Stock Keeping Units”)

16 700m2

Two distribution centres
R61,6m
of brand management spend
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SUCCESSES FOR THE YEAR
The marketing highlight of the year was the opening of the new 

Euro Nouveau showroom, which houses the ultra-premium 

product range of lighting sourced exclusively from Europe.  

The launch was attended by top clients, architects, interior 

designers and invited guests. The concept was well-received by 

all who attended.

The joint venture with Crabtree has shown great growth, with 

increased penetration into the major retailers in terms of both 

turnover and product range. 

The project business has also had many successes, having been 

involved in projects around the country. Eurolux lighting designs and 

products are now used extensively in projects locally and in Africa. 

A major success was being awarded the tender for the upgrading 

of the stadium lighting at Boland Park, the cricket stadium in 

Paarl. This will ensure that the stadium will remain one of the 

premier playing venues in South Africa, especially for the  

day/night format games. Lux levels of over 2 500 lux are being 

achieved on the wicket, which will result in world-class 

batting conditions.

MARKET OVERVIEW
The macro-economic conditions for the year were difficult and 
characterised by a stagnating economy. The country entered a 
technical recession in the second quarter of the 2017 calendar 
year. Low business confidence and political instability also had a 
negative effect on investment. The retail sector battled with 
negative real growth. This was coupled with a strengthening 
Rand, which meant passing on price decreases that in turn 
further exacerbated the decline in turnover. The expectation is 
that this will continue for the foreseeable future, with no respite 
predicted in the next financial year.

STRATEGIES
To negate the decline in retail sales, it was necessary to develop 
alternative strategies and invest in them. 

Euro Nouveau was successfully launched and is now contributing 
to the growth of the division. 

The continued growth and market penetration of the Crabtree 
range of products into the retail market sector has also assisted 
with market share growth. 

Range reviews were done with the major retail chains as well as 

store designs to complement the new ranges. The benefits of 

these two initiatives will be seen in the new financial year.  

DIVISIONAL REVIEWS (continued)

New product ranges were also investigated and strategies and 

action plans put in place to ensure that they would contribute to 

increased sales in the short term. The new initiatives required 

increased working space and an additional 3 650m2 of space was 

sourced adjacent to the Johannesburg distribution centre.

The division expects to realise substantial sales from these new 

initiatives in the new financial year.

OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL OVERVIEW
The division grew revenue slightly from R507m to R511m for the 

period under review. Operating profit of R58m is slightly below 

the R60m achieved in the prior year. This was after an increased 

stock provision of R3m to account for slow moving stock.

A focus on efficiency and working capital management resulted 

in a reduction in debtors’ days outstanding and stock on hand, 

which resulted in a significant overall decrease in working capital 

compared to the prior year. When expressed as a percentage of 

revenue, working capital utilised decreased from 46% in the prior 

year to 40% in the current year. This trend is expected to continue 

and to decrease the interest payable in the new financial year. 

This saving will increase as the interest rates decrease during 

the coming year.

The key to success in the past year has been the strategy of 

aggressively targeting and growing market share in the industry. 

This will need to continue into the new financial year. Focus on 

efficiency is also paramount, with work already under way to 

ensure that all product movements are monitored via scanning 

instead of manually. The automation via IT innovation of  

many manual processes is also under way, leading to a more 

efficient approach.

OUTLOOK
No major changes are predicted for the economic outlook, with 

tough trading conditions set to continue. The focus for the 

division will be to aggressively grow market share whilst 

introducing new products into the markets in which it operates, 

thus adding value to customers. New and existing projects will 

also continue to drive revenue, although sustainable major 

organic turnover growth is not anticipated until the economic 

climate improves. The drive for efficiency in terms of operational 

and financial objectives will remain in place, and investment in 

new initiatives and looking for opportunities to add value to both 

existing and new customers will be an ongoing priority.
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Figures in R000’s 2017 2016

Revenue  2 479 418  2 489 791 

Other income  9 848  6 231 

Less: Cost of products sold  (2 057 327)  (2 057 949) 

Value created  431 939  438 073 

Income from investments  21 665  11 911 

Total wealth created  453 603  449 984 

Wealth distributed  

Employees  

 � Salaries, wages and benefits  206 529  202 450 

Providers of capital  

 � Dividends to shareholders  93 385  86 335 

GOVERNMENT  

 � Taxation and levies  65 947  67 092 

Retained in the Group  87 742  94 107 

 � Reserves  73 752  81 785 

 � Deferred taxation  162  805 

 � Depreciation and amortisation  13 828  11 517 

 453 603  449 984 

VALUE ADDED REPORT
for the year ended 30 June 2017

45%

21%

19%

15%

GovernmentEmployees

Providers of capital Retained in Group

Distribution of wealth 2017 Distribution of wealth 2016

45%

19%

21%

15%

GovernmentEmployees

Providers of capital Retained in Group
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

At ARB we acknowledge the importance of prioritising social and 

environmental awareness practices, together with the strong 

focus on financial results, and we are committed to sustainable 

transformation as a business imperative to ensure that we make 

a positive contribution to the South African economy; our 

stakeholders; the environment and the communities within 

which we operate.

We broadly define stakeholders as employees; shareholders; 

customers; suppliers; business partners; the government and 

the communities within which we operate. A report detailing 

stakeholder engagement can be found on page 33 of this 

Integrated Report.

ECONOMIC
On the previous page (page 27 of this Integrated Report), we have 

included a wealth distribution breakdown detailing the economic 

value generated and distributed by ARB during the 2017 financial 

year. The Group continues to pay 45% of the wealth generated to 

staff by way of salaries and incentives, 21% providers of capital, 

15% government and the balance of the wealth generated was 

retained in the Group to fund future growth opportunities.

ARB’s cash flow requirements to run its operations and pay for 

capital expenditure are funded internally from cash generated by 

its operations. ARB has not received any financial assistance 

from the government.

ENVIRONMENT
ARB is committed to ensuring that we take preventative measures 

to protect the environment. A dedicated member of operational 

management at each of the Group’s operations is responsible for 

the waste and environmental management at his/her respective 

operation. None of ARB’s operations have a harmful effect on the 

environment and no habitats need to be protected or restored as 

a result of our operations. 

At this stage, we do not measure our use of water, energy or our 

carbon footprint as we believe that none of the ARB divisions nor 

their respective subsidiaries is a large user of these, nor has a 

major effect on the environment. We will, however, review this on 

an annual basis and should the circumstances change, the 

necessary processes will be implemented.

In the Lighting Division, recycling of all hydrocarbons and the 

removal of dangerous substance wastes (e.g. fluorescent tubes) 

is undertaken by a registered waste management company, 

Interwaste. Since 2009, Eurolux has been part of a lighting 

industry body which, in conjunction with Eskom and the 

Department of Environmental Affairs, is investigating various 

alternatives for the safe and environmentally friendly disposal 

and recycling of fluorescent and high-intensity discharge lamps 

which contain mercury.

Until the above initiative is formalised, Eurolux has, over the past 

number of years, offered a free service to its customers, who  

are able to drop off all used lamps at Eurolux’s premises.  

These lamps are then safely crushed and deposited into  

custom-manufactured recycling drums that are collected by 

Interwaste and delivered to the Holfontein Hazardous Waste 

Plant near Springs, Gauteng.

LABOUR PRACTICES AND DECENT  
WORKING CONDITIONS
Employees ensure that ARB remains competitive, its service 

levels remain high and its business is conducted in an ethical and 

ultimately, profitable manner. Our commitment to our employees 

spans a variety of sustainability issues including employment 

equity; health and safety; basic human rights; HIV/AIDS and 

skills development, each of which is discussed below. We are 

further guided by prevailing legislation including the Basic 

Conditions of Employment Act; the Labour Relations Act; the 

Skills Development Act; the Occupational Health and Safety Act 

and the Employment Equity Act.

During the course of the year, no incidents of human rights 

violations were reported. Neither ARB nor any of its subsidiaries 

make or made use of child labour. To the best of our knowledge, 

neither did any of our suppliers.

As at 30 June 2017, there were 938 full-time employees (2016: 917) 

across all Group companies.
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EMPLOYMENT EQUITY
ARB’s recruitment policies are codified in accordance with the 

Employment Equity Act to attract the necessary competencies 

while creating equal employment opportunities. Our policies are 

geared towards attracting, retaining and promoting our staff 

through career development and succession planning at all 

levels. To support these objectives, innovative recruitment 

strategies are used including psychometric testing and pre-

employment assessments, where appropriate.

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT
ARB recognises the value of fostering an inspiring environment 

to ensure that each staff member is given the opportunity to 

achieve his/her maximum potential. An ongoing career promotion 

programme ensures that each staff member is afforded an  

equal opportunity to grow through business administration, 

management and commercial courses funded by the Group.

The Group has a minor child bursary scheme open to all 

employees. The programme is specifically targeted at the long 

serving, lower earning employees for both basic and higher 

(tertiary) education. The bursary is paid directly to the educational 

institution concerned and covers a maximum of two children per 

employee. During 2017 there were 106 beneficiaries from this 

scheme, pleasingly up on the 59 of last year. 

In addition, ARB provides study loans to qualifying employees to 

further their education. Where these studies are in the employee’s 

field of employment, the loan (up to maximum amounts 

determined by the Board) are amortised over an agreed period of 

post qualification employment.

We are not only committed to the ongoing training of employees, 

but to life skills teaching as well. To date, ARB has held training 

in the following areas: basic computer skills, primary healthcare, 

HIV/AIDS awareness and life orientation.

Employee gender, race and age breakdowns

Our learnerships programme provides opportunities to 

unemployed school leavers from disadvantaged backgrounds 

that leads to an NQF qualification. At year-end, the Electrical 

Division supported 41 learners, 28 (58%) of whom were  

disabled learners from previously disadvantaged backgrounds.  

Our programme runs for a 13-month period during which the 

learners receive formal training in accredited programmes 

directly related to an occupation or field of work, for example 

wholesale and retail supervision operating at NQF L4. 

Our learnerships are managed by the Wholesale and Retail  

Sector Education and Training Authority (“W&R SETA”). They 

were introduced to help up-skill learners and to prepare  

those unemployed for the workplace. Our learnerships require 

learners to complete a theoretical course as well as practical  

training, which are done at a workplace, in order to graduate.  

The workplace component of the qualification involves hands-on, 

practical learning under the guidance of a mentor, while the 

theoretical component is provided by an education and training 

provider. Together they form an integrated and comprehensive 

learning programme. These programmes help employees to gain 

the necessary skills and workplace experience that will open up 

better employment opportunities.

For the year ended 30 June 2017, ARB’s aggregate skills 

development spend amounted to R4,7m, which was significantly 

up on the R2,1m invested in 2016, focused predominantly on our 

learnerships and business skills such as selling skills, freight 

loading, health and safety and management development. 

HEALTH AND SAFETY
ARB is committed to ensuring a safe and healthy working 

environment and to ensuring strict compliance with the 

Occupational Health and Safety Act. 

51%

10%
12%
26%

Total employees by age band Total employees by raceTotal employees by gender

46%

9%

28%

4%
13%

36 – 45
< 25

25 – 35

46 – 55 > 55

Male

72% 28%

Female

African
Coloured

Indian
White
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT (continued)

Our internal audit function is tasked with the responsibility of 

monitoring health and safety policies and procedures, and 

monitoring compliance thereof. To this end, a comprehensive 

health and safety manual is maintained in accordance with 

current legislation. In addition, health and safety committees 

have been established at each of our branches and all health and 

safety representatives receive external training to ensure that 

they are familiar with the legislative requirements, and are 

equipped to discharge their responsibilities in this regard.

Each branch is assessed by the internal audit department as part 

of their internal audit according to an assessment module to 

ensure that legal requirements, as determined by current 

legislation, are met and adhered to. 

In addition, Employee Forum meetings are held and “Toolbox 

Talks” are held on a regular basis to identify and deal with 

ongoing safety issues. Where risk issues are identified, 

appropriate measures are taken to mitigate them.

ARB’s commitment to health and safety is proving effective, with 

no major incidences reported during the past year.

HIV/AIDS
As a responsible corporate citizen, ARB shares concern about 

the HIV/AIDS pandemic threatening South Africans and is 

committed to minimising the implications of the disease through 

proactive HIV/AIDS workplace programmes. At ARB we draw on 

the government’s policy on HIV/AIDS as a guideline for our  

HIV/AIDS awareness programme. 

BROAD-BASED BLACK ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT (“B-BBEE”)
ARB’s employment demographics and the B-BBEE ratings that the main trading subsidiaries have achieved are:

Male Female

A C I W Total A C I W Total Total

Top Management – – 2 8 10 – – – 2 2 12

Senior Management 1 1 3 26 31 1 – – 2 3 34

Professional – 3 6 14 23 – – – 4 4 27

Skilled 27 12 18 26 83 8 8 3 35 54 137

Semi-skilled 202 31 53 82 368 41 20 30 38 129 497

Unskilled 141 17 2 8 168 54 4 1 4 63 231

Total permanent 371 64 84 164 683 104 32 34 85 255 938

Temporary 2 – – 1 3 6 – – – 6 9

Total 373 64 84 165 686 110 32 34 85 261 947

B-BBEE ownership
A black-owned investment company, Batsomi Power, has held a 

26% ownership interest in the Group’s main operating subsidiary, 

ARB Electrical Wholesalers, since 2005. Batsomi also holds an 

indirect ownership interest of 26% in Elektro Vroomen. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND ETHICS
The Board recognises that good corporate governance is vital to 

the sustainable growth of ARB. The Group’s corporate governance 

structures and procedures as well as its Code of Conduct and 

Ethics are detailed in the Corporate Governance Report appearing 

on pages 36 to 40 of this Integrated Report.

ARB’s main trading subsidiaries have achieved the following 

B-BBEE ratings:

ARB Electrical Wholesalers – Level 2 Contributor verified by “BEE 

Rated”, a SANAS B-BBEE Verification Agency on 22 August 2017;

Elektro Vroomen – Level 4 Contributor verified by “BEE Rated”, 

a SANAS B-BBEE Verification Agency on 24 April 2017; and

Eurolux – Level 7 Contributor verified by Moore Stephens BKV 

B-BBEE Verification and Consulting, a SANAS B-BBEE Verification 

Agency on 12 April 2016.

The Group’s main subsidiaries have each completed a gap 

analysis in order to assess the impact of the proposed revisions 

to the B-BBEE codes. Now that these codes have been finalised, 

appropriate strategies will be implemented. 
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CORPORATE SOCIAL INVESTMENT (“CSI”) 

ARB is committed to the socio-economic development and empowerment of the local 

communities in which we operate. Through the Electrical and Lighting Divisions, we actively 

support a number of initiatives aimed at improving living conditions which include supporting 

underprivileged schools, orphanages, shelters and HIV/AIDS programmes such as: 

    iThemba Trust Sweetwaters, which helps orphaned 

children in KwaZulu-Natal, with education delivered via the 

iThemba Academy; cluster foster homes and sustainability, which 

is led by committed business people and companies (such as ARB) 

that provide leadership to ensure that the long-term goals of the 

organisation are sustainable. For further information on Focus on 

iThemba please visit www.focusonithemba.org.

    The Robin Hood Foundation, an 11 year old 

non-profit organisation, with four core outreach programmes to 

which ARB has continued to contribute. The aim of the organisation 

is to run an estimate of at least fifty sub-categorised projects per 

annum. For further information on The Robin Hood Foundation, 

please visit www.robinhoodfoundation.co.za.

    The Domino Foundation, which seeks to assist and 

empower the neediest in communities to pave the way for a 

brighter tomorrow. Their vision is to equip individuals physically, 

emotionally, socially, cognitively and spiritually to enable purpose-

filled lives. For further information on The Domino Foundation 

please visit www.domino.org.za.

    Churches such as the Tokai Community Church, East Claremont 

Congregational Church, etc.

    SANCCOB, which looks after sick and injured seabirds after oils 

spills, public rescues and breeding site monitoring.

    Sports clubs (eg Morningside sports club, Delville Germiston 

Bowls club, Knights United sports club, Meyerton Knights Rugby Club, 

Wynberg Squash Club and the North Mpumalanga Angling Club.)

   Joe Slovo bread on Friday iniative.

    Golden Bird Patrons BirdLife South Africa’s focus on 

conserving our country’s birds and their habitats.

    SAME Foundation (“South African Medical & Education 

Foundation”), which provides improved healthcare and education in 

poverty-stricken communities through high-impact, focused projects.
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ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS

ARB’S STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

ARB’s various stakeholders are identified in the diagram below. Stakeholders are seen as 

groups or individuals impacted by ARB’s operations. At ARB we are committed to constructive, 

transparent and continuous engagement with all our stakeholders.

CUSTOMERS

EMPLOYEES

Constructive, transparent and 

continuous engagement with 

all stakeholders.

SHAREHOLDERS/ 
INVESTMENT COMMUNITY

SUPPLIERS

GOVERNMENT/
PARASTATALS

REGULATORS

COMMUNITIES

FINANCIERS

TRADE UNIONS
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ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS (continued)

Stakeholder Type of engagement Issues raised Outcomes

Shareholders/

investment 

community

 � SENS announcements
 � Interim and final results 

presentations
 � Active ARB Holdings website
 � Dissemination of information to 

a detailed contact list
 � Formal and informal 

conference calls and meetings
 � Press interviews
 � Annual general meeting

 � Careful and cautions 

management largely 

complemented in the  

current market
 � Confirmation and timing of ARB’s 

diversification strategy
 � Potential problems with future 

growth in the business
 � High levels of cash on the 

balance sheet
 � Share liquidity issues

 � Board continues to assess 

various acquisitions to benefit  

the Group
 � Executive team is driving organic 

growth in a difficult environment
 � Considered as a funding option in 

potential acquisitions

Customers  � Formal business meetings
 � Regular site visits and 

interaction with company 

representatives at all levels
 � Presentations relating to 

products
 � Credit checks and reviews
 � Customer breakfasts and braais
 �  Trade shows

 � Pricing and availability  

of inventory
 � Long delays in payment by 

government and municipalities
 � Volatile exchange rates  

causing volatile pricing in fixed 

price contracts
 � Their customers not paying them 

(parastatals) 

 � Maintenance of optimal  

stock levels
 � Active monitoring of overdue 

payments and extended terms 

where necessary and affordable
 � ARB secures prices and stock 

ahead of time to minimise the 

price volatility

Employees  � Basic conditions of employment
 � Employment equity
 � Training
 � Health and safety

 � Job security 
 � Fair remuneration taking 

consideration of the food and 

transport costs being in excess 

of CPI 
 � Equal opportunity for all 

employees
 � Ability to obtain necessary skills 

for promotion opportunities

 � Regular updates on branch 

specific issues
 � “Toolbox Talks” 
 � Annual salary reviews with higher 

increases to lower  

paid employees
 � Quarterly newsletter 
 � Grievance procedures
 � Performance reviews to assess 

capabilities and opportunity for 

development
 � Regular employment equity 

committee meetings
 � Internal staff meetings at  

all levels
 � Regular workers forum meetings 

with monthly feedback
 � Social and Ethics Committee
 � On the job training
 � Internal and external training and 

development
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Stakeholder Type of engagement Issues raised Outcomes

Suppliers  � Formal one-on-one business 

meetings, dealing with supply 

issues and commercial terms  

of reference
 � Product training to our staff on 

new or existing products
 � Trade shows

 � Increasing low cost competition 

from the East
 � Perceived irresponsible 

competitor trading practices

 � Maintain strong relationships 

with strategic suppliers
 � Ensure all goods supplied comply 

with regulatory standards
 � Member of Safe-house
 � Ensure all staff are adequately 

trained on the products

Government/

parastatals

 � Meetings, industry body 

representation and conference 

participation

 � No issues were raised in ARB’s 

dealings with government or 

parastatals

 � Continue to comply with all 

applicable legislation and be a 

responsible corporate citizen

Regulators  � Reporting, correspondence, 

formal meetings and feedback 

sessions

 � No issues were raised in ARB’s 

dealings with regulators

 � Continue to comply with all 

applicable legislation and be a 

responsible corporate citizen

Financiers  � Formal one-on-one meetings 

as well as telephonic 

discussions
 � Annual facilities review
 � Annual and interim financial 

information for the Group  

issued timeously

 � As the Group is ungeared there 

are no issues raised in ARB’s 

dealings with the Group’s 

financiers

 � Ensure regular communication 

with bankers in anticipation of 

future requirements

Trades union  � Ad-hoc engagement as 

membership low and represent 

a small proportion of the 

various legal entities

 � Union representation and 

recognition
 � CCMA facilitated wage 

negotiations

 � Set levels of employee 

representation to obtain  

basic rights
 � Set levels at which active 

negotiation would be facilitated

Communities  � Extensive CSI initiatives and 

participation by both the  

Group’s divisions

 � More financial support
 � Support more CSI projects

 � Social and Ethics Committee
 � Ongoing initiatives and annual 

donations to credible community 

organisations
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION
ARB is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate 

governance. The Board is the focal point of the Group’s corporate 

governance management system and remains ultimately 

responsible for its implementation and performance. The 

Directors of ARB acknowledge the importance of good corporate 

governance and are committed to implementing the Code of 

Governance Principles (“the Code”) as set out in the King Code of 

Governance for South Africa 2009 (“King III”) as required by the 

Listings Requirements of the JSE Ltd (“the JSE”) and all other 

applicable laws. In implementing King III, the Directors subscribe 

to the need to manage the Group based on the principles of 

integrity and accountability. The Group’s corporate governance 

structures and policies are evaluated on an ongoing basis and 

are amended, as appropriate, in response to changes within and 

external to the Group. The Board is currently reviewing the 

conversion to the new King IV Code and will incorporate this in 

the 2018 Integrated Report. 

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The JSE Listings Requirements require listed companies to 

report on the extent to which they comply with the principles and 

recommendations set out in King III. To the best of the Board’s 

knowledge and belief, the only areas of possible (partial) non-

compliance with the recommendations set out in King III are 

as follows:

ARB’s founder and Chairman, Alan R Burke, is not classified as 

being independent given his material shareholding in the Group. 

In terms of the recommendations of King III, ARB has appointed 

a Lead Independent Director, Ralph Patmore.

A formal induction programme for Directors is in the process of 

being developed. 

The Group’s sustainability reporting and disclosure are not 

independently assured. The Audit Committee, which comprises 

only Independent Non-Executive Directors, is responsible for 

overseeing the level of sustainability reporting, compliance with 

the levels selected and for reviewing this Integrated Report. The 

Board has further adopted a combined assurance model with 

certain aspects of the Group’s reporting being independently 

assured while other aspects are evaluated internally, but 

independently, assessed and reported. For example, the internal 

audit function reports directly to the independent Chairman of 

the Audit Committee and the Board is satisfied that the Internal 

Audit function and work programme does not need to be 

independently reviewed.

The complete King III compliance checklist is available on the 

Group’s website – www.arbhold.co.za – under the Investor 

Relations section.

THE BOARD
The Group is led by an effective, unitary Board. Notwithstanding 

the delegation by the Board of certain powers and authorities to 

executive management and sub-committees, the Board is 

ultimately responsible for retaining full and effective control over 

the Group. Decisions on material matters are reserved for the 

Board. The Board currently comprises six Directors; two of whom 

are the ex-officio Executive Directors, being the Group CEO and 

the Group CFO, and four are Non-Executive Directors, three of 

whom are independent. As recommended in King III, the Board 

comprises a majority of Non-Executive Directors, the majority of 

whom are independent. The Independent Non-Executive 

Directors ensure that no individual has unfettered powers of 

decision making and authority so as to protect the best interests 

of all shareholders. 

The Non-Executive Directors have unrestricted access to 

management and all company information and resources of the 

Group to enable them to properly discharge their responsibilities. 

Management is tasked to provide all relevant material information 

to the Board to enable it to discharge these responsibilities and the 

Board agendas are structured to enable the Board to address all 

governance items in its charter over a 12-month period.

All Directors have the requisite knowledge and experience 

required to properly execute their duties. Directors are 

encouraged to stay abreast of the Group’s businesses through 

independent site visits and meetings with executive management. 

All Directors are entitled, at ARB’s expense, to seek independent 

professional advice on any matter pertaining to the Group which 

they deem necessary. A brief curriculum vitae for each Director 

is set out on pages 16 and 17 of this Integrated Report.

Scheduled Board meetings are held at least quarterly and, if 

required, more frequently. Directors are provided in advance with 

all necessary information to enable them to discharge their 

duties. Any Director may request that additional matters be 

added to the agenda. Proceedings at Board meetings are 

properly minuted and all minutes are circulated to all Board 

members for review prior to being approved. In addition, Executive 

and Non-Executive Directors meet informally on a regular basis.
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SUB-COMMITTEES
The Board has four sub-committees, each with their own formal charter, which deal with the more detailed aspects of responsibility 

for governance so that the main Board, which retains ultimate responsibility for the Group, can focus more on strategic matters more 

effectively. These sub-committees report to the Board through their respective chairmen and the minutes of these meetings are 

included in the following Board pack. These sub-committee chairs are available at the AGM of shareholders to respond to any 

shareholder questions regarding their committee’s areas of responsibility. These sub-committees, whose formal reports follow in this 

Report, are as follows:

ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS
Details of Directors’ attendance at Board meetings and Board sub-committee meetings held during the year are set out below.  

The second figure indicates the number of meetings that each Director was eligible to attend.

Director Board Audit Risk
Remuneration

 and Nomination
Social 

and Ethics

AR Burke (Chairman)* 4/4 4/4 2/3

ST Downes** 4/4 3/3 4/4 3/3 2/2

JS Dixon** 4/4 3/3 4/4 3/3 2/2

RB Patmore**+ 4/4 3/3 4/4 3/3

WR Neasham (CEO) 4/4 3/3# 4/4# 3/3# 2/2#

GM Scrutton (CFO) 4/4 3/3# 4/4# 3/3# 2/2

Other executives

BG Burke (CEO Electrical) 4/4# 4/4#

P Willig (CEO Lighting) 4/4# 4/4#

SL Bester (CFO Electrical) 1/1# 2/2

N Mlambo (HR Electrical) 2/2

* Non-Executive. ** Independent Non-Executive. + Lead Independent Director. # By invitation.

Remuneration and 
Nomination Committee Risk Committee Audit Committee

Social and Ethics 
Committee

Executive Non-Executive

The Board

Sub-committees
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

CHAIRMAN
The Board is chaired by Mr Alan R Burke, founder and the largest 

shareholder of ARB. The role of Chairman is separate from that 

of Group CEO. The Chairman provides leadership and guidance to 

the Board and obtains input from the other Directors by 

encouraging active debate and proper deliberation on all matters 

requiring the Board’s attention. The Chairman provides ethical 

leadership and ensures that the Board remains efficient, focused 

and operates as a unit, and is further responsible for evaluating 

the Board and its members on an annual basis and representing 

the Board to shareholders.

LEAD INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
In accordance with King III recommendations, a Lead Independent 

Director, Ralph Patmore, has been appointed.

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The Group CEO, together with the other Executive Directors, is 

responsible for implementing the Group’s strategic plan and 

operational decisions in respect of the day-to-day running of the 

business, while the Non-Executive Directors review and provide 

oversight and guidance in this regard. The collective responsibility 

for management vests with the CEO.

The Group Financial Director is the Group CFO, Grant Scrutton. 

The Audit Committee is satisfied that he has the appropriate 

expertise and experience for the position.

The Group CEO and Group CFO meet formally each month  

with each of the divisional and subsidiary Managing Directors  

and/or Group CEOs to discuss financial, operational and  

strategic matters. 

Each operating entity within the Group has its own executive 

management committee that meets regularly to discuss and 

attend to the day-to-day management of their respective 

businesses. The Group CEO is invited to these review meetings.

COMPANY SECRETARY 
The Company Secretary, Mario Louw (IAC), is a full-time 

employee of the Group and advises the Board on the appropriate 

procedures for the management of meetings and implementation 

of governance procedures, and is further responsible for 

providing the Board collectively, and each Director individually, 

with guidance on the discharge of their responsibilities in terms 

of the legislative and regulatory requirements applicable to the 

Group. The Company Secretary is further responsible for 

ensuring regulatory and legislative compliance by the Group. All 

Directors have unrestricted access to the Company Secretary.

Mario Louw has an IAC (company secretary qualification) and has 

been involved in company secretarial work for more than 

11 years. Furthermore, Mario Louw is not a Director of the Group 

or any of its subsidiary companies, nor is he related or connected 

to any of the Directors, thereby ensuring an independent arm’s 

length relationship between the Company Secretary and the 

Board. On an annual basis, the Board considers and confirms 

that it is satisfied with the competence, qualifications and 

experience of the Company Secretary. The Board specifically 

reviewed Mr Louw’s proactive actions taken to ensure the  

Group complies with all legal obligations, advice of changes  

in legislation, compliance with JSE regulations and 

communications, Board charter updates, advice to Directors on 

ethics and good governance, ensuring the Board’s policies and 

instructions are communicated and feedback given to the 

Directors, meeting agendas, preparation packs and minutes are 

complete and timeously distributed, secretarial and administrative 

procedures are performed promptly and efficiently, conflict  

of interest registers maintained and updated and the like.  

This review was successfully completed on 16 August 2017.

The certificate required to be signed by the Company Secretary in 

terms of section 88(2) of the Companies Act, appears on page 51 

of this Integrated Report.

APPOINTMENT OF NEW DIRECTORS
The Board constantly assesses its composition to ensure that it 

comprises the appropriate balance of skills, experience and 

competency levels required to effectively discharge its duties. 

The Remuneration and Nominations Committee is responsible 

for succession planning and to ensure that the Board competence 

and balance is enhanced and maintained. Due cognisance is 

taken on the JSE directive for gender and racial equality and thus 

is part of the selection criteria in the nomination process.

In terms of the Memorandum of Incorporation (“MOI”), one-third 

of the Non-Executive Directors are required to retire by rotation 

at the next AGM and, if available and eligible, are recommended 

by the Nominations Committee for re-election at the AGM.

BOARD CHARTER
The Board is regulated by a formal Board Charter, which is reviewed 

bi-annually, and codifies the role of the Board and the responsibilities 

of the Directors. This comprehensive charter addresses matters 

relating to Board composition; leadership; remuneration; evaluation; 

Group processes and procedures; key operational risks and 

corporate governance. The charter provides the Board with a 

mandate to exercise leadership; to determine the Group’s vision and 

strategy, and to monitor operational performance.
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The specific duties and responsibilities of the Board as codified 

by the charter include:
 � reviewing and approving the strategic plans of the operations;
 � reviewing and approving of the annual budgets/forecasts;
 � defining of the required competencies as well as the number 

and profile of Board members, which includes reviewing the 

performance of the Group CEO, Non-Executive Directors and 

the Company Secretary;
 � succession planning at senior executive level;
 � remuneration of Non-Executive and of Executive Directors;
 � effective short and long-term incentive schemes for the 

executives;
 � capital management and allocation;
 � performance monitoring and review;
 � policies dealing with conflicts of interests and codes of 

conduct including related-party transactions, share dealings 

by Directors, and insider trading;
 � corporate governance compliance and review;
 � risk management overview;
 � audit and compliance overview, including the appointment of 

the external auditors and definition and scope of internal audit 

functions; and
 � overview of the internal control environment and compliance.

EVALUATION OF THE BOARD AND DIRECTORS
The Chairman conducts an annual evaluation exercise reviewing 

the Board’s role, processes, sub-committees and performance  

in accordance with the Board Charter and assesses each 

Director’s performance.

BOARD SUB-COMMITTEES
The reports of the following sub-committees that have been 

established to assist the Board in discharging its responsibilities 

are set out later in this Report:
 � Risk Committee (page 41)
 � Audit Committee (page 44)
 � Remuneration and Nomination Committee (page 46)
 � Social and Ethics Committee (page 48)

BENEFICIAL SHAREHOLDINGS
The beneficial shareholdings of the Directors of the Group and its 

subsidiaries are set out in the Directors’ Report of the annual 

financial statements on page 54 of this Integrated Report.

SHARE DEALINGS AND INSIDER TRADING
Directors are required to disclose their shareholdings and any 

dealings in shares of the Group to the Chairman and Group CEO, 

who together with the Group’s sponsor ensure that any such 

dealings are published on SENS in compliance with the JSE 

Listings Requirements. In addition, all Directors and all subsidiary 

Directors, including the Company Secretary, are prohibited from 

dealing in the shares of the Group during closed periods or at any 

time when they are in possession of unpublished price sensitive 

information in relation to those shares. The consent of the 

Chairman is required before any Director or member of senior 

management, including the Company Secretary, can deal in the 

Group’s shares. 

The Group has a formal policy on the release of price sensitive 

information. No employee may deal, directly or indirectly, in ARB 

shares based on unpublished price sensitive information regarding 

the business or the affairs of the Group. In addition, comprehensive 

confidentiality agreements are in place with the Group’s sponsor, 

advisors, printers and investor relations agency.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
A formal register of Directors’ interests is maintained by the 

Company Secretary and is available at each Board meeting. 

Directors are required to inform the Board timeously of conflicts 

or potential conflicts of interest they may have in relation to the 

Group and any of its businesses and this is specifically reviewed, 

on an exception basis, at each formal Board meeting. Directors 

are obliged to recuse themselves from discussions or decisions 

on matters in which they have a conflict of interest. Every 

employee is required to get prior written approval from the CEO 

and, on an annual basis to disclose in writing, for any outside 

business interests or any other potential conflicts of interests.

CODE OF CONDUCT AND ETHICS AND TIP OFF LINE
Every employee within the ARB Group is required to subscribe to 

a formal Code of Ethics (“the Code”) which stipulates the Group’s 

commitment to the highest standards of corporate governance 

and compliance with the laws of South Africa. The Code sets out 

standards of integrity and ethics in dealings with suppliers, 

customers, business partners, stakeholders, government and 

society at large. It requires all employees to act with honesty and 

integrity in all dealings with stakeholders and to interact with 

fairness, dignity and respect to create and protect a credible 

business reputation and a working environment free from 

harassment and discrimination.

In line with the Code, the Group recruits and promotes employees 

on the basis of their suitability for the job without any discrimination 

on the basis of race, religion, national origin, colour, gender, age, 

marital status, sexual orientation or disability unrelated to the task 

at hand.
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Employees have been educated about the responsibility of 

reporting any actual, perceived or potential violation of the Code to 

management. Management bears the overall responsibility of 

monitoring compliance with the Code. ARB takes the Code 

seriously and, where appropriate, employs disciplinary procedures 

and/or legal proceedings to address any transgression.

The Group has a formal tip off policy and a tip off line which is 

managed by the Internal Auditor. There is a formal Group policy 

protocol regarding these tip offs approved by all CEOs. A register 

is submitted to the Audit Committee and reviewed to ensure tip 

offs were being appropriately addressed. During the year, only 

eight tip off calls were received and all were investigated and 

resolved. Ethics issues (such as being involved in outside 

businesses) were all timeously addressed.

STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION
The Group is committed to timely, consistent, honest and 

transparent communication with all stakeholders and encourages 

an open communication culture throughout the Group. This is 

carried through to all means of communication including 

advertising where all untruths, concealment or misleading 

descriptions are prohibited.

Company announcements are released on SENS and, if required, 

published in the press. Regular presentations and meetings are 

held with investors and analysts to communicate the strategy 

and performance of the Group. Furthermore, the Group CEO is 

available to answer any queries from stakeholders including 

institutional shareholders and industry analysts, and wherever 

possible, engages with the financial media to ensure accurate 

reporting. Shareholders are also afforded the opportunity to put 

questions to the Board at the Group’s AGM.

The Group’s website provides information on the Group and 

contains the latest and historical financial information.

The Group engages the services of Keyter Rech Investor Solutions 

CC to assist and advise it with all shareholder communications.

A table on stakeholder engagement can be found on page 33.

FRAUD, BRIBERY, CORRUPTION, ILLEGAL ACTS 
The Group does not engage in or condone any form of fraud, 

bribery, corruption or any other illegal acts in the conduct of its 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

business. Furthermore, employees are discouraged from 

accepting gifts or favours from suppliers that obligate them in 

any way to reciprocate. The Group’s policy is to actively pursue 

and prosecute the perpetrators of any fraudulent or other illegal 

activities should they become aware of any such acts. 

All Executive Directors, Divisional Directors and Regional, Branch 

and Sales Managers have signed the annual representation 

confirming they have performed their duties in an ethical manner 

within the confines of the appropriate laws and regulations and 

disclose all potential conflicts of interests, family members 

employed in the Group and all gifts over R500. The Operational 

and Group CEOs review all these declarations.

POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS
The Group does not contribute to any political parties or politicians.

ANTI-COMPETITIVE BEHAVIOUR
The Group supports and encourages free external and internal 

competition in all business units and subsidiaries. All Executive 

Directors, Divisional Directors and Regional, Branch and  

Sales Managers have signed the annual representation  

letter confirming that they have not participated in any anti-

competitive behaviour.

LITIGATION
The services of external legal advisors are engaged by the Group 

when deemed necessary. Other than as set out in Note 25.1 to the 

Financial Statements on page 85, the Board is not aware of any 

legal or arbitration proceedings that may have, or have had in the 

previous 12 months, a material effect on the financial position of 

the Group or any of its subsidiaries.

SPONSOR
Grindrod Bank Ltd is the Group’s sponsor and advises the Board 

on the interpretation of and compliance with the JSE Listings 

Requirements and with the review of all announcements and 

documentation required in terms thereof.
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RISK COMMITTEE REPORT

MEMBERS 
The Risk Committee currently comprises the following members:

 � Simon Downes (Chairman) – Independent, Non-Executive 

Director;
 � Alan R Burke – Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the 

Board of Directors;
 � James Dixon – Non-Executive Director; and
 � Ralph Patmore – Lead Independent, Non-Executive Director.

The following executives attend the Risk Committee by 

invitation only:
 � Billy Neasham – Group CEO;
 � Grant Scrutton – Group CFO;
 � Blayne Burke – Electrical Division CEO; and
 � Peter Willig – Lighting Division CEO.

The Group’s IT Director was also invited, from time to time, to 

present on matters relating to IT governance. The Group 

Secretary acts as the secretary to this committee.

ROLE OF THE RISK COMMITTEE
The Risk Committee operates in terms of a formal charter 

approved by the Board. Overall responsibility for the identification, 

evaluation, monitoring and management of risk vests with 

executive management. The committee provides independent 

and objective oversight of the information presented by executive 

management and reviews the risk philosophy, strategy and 

policies recommended by executive management.

The specific responsibilities of the Risk Committee include:
 � assisting the Board in discharging its duties relating to 

corporate accountability and the associated risks. Risk in 

the widest sense includes, but is not necessarily limited to, 

strategic risk; financial risk; operational risk; reputational 

risk and environmental risk, and
 � assisting the Board in discharging its duties relating to  

IT governance.

MEETINGS OF THE RISK COMMITTEE
During the year, the Risk Committee met four times, which the 

Directors believe is sufficient for discharging the committee’s 

responsibilities. Additional meetings are convened as required. 

Details of Directors’ attendance at the Risk Committee meetings 

are set out on page 37.

OVERVIEW OF THE RISK ASSESSMENT PROCESS 
AND IDENTIFICATION OF THE TOP 6 GROUP RISKS
The identification and mitigation of the Group’s significant risks 

is a key driver in the management of the Group’s businesses.  

We set out below the risk process overview and the top six 

identified risks. 

The management of ARB’s risks is a key driver in the way in which the business is run. 

Included is the risk matrix as well as a separate Risk Committee Report.

FinancialStrategic Operational Reputational Environmental IT

1 2 3 4 5 6

RISK COMMITTEE
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RISK COMMITTEE REPORT (continued)

RISK MATRIX

Description of risk Level of risk Mitigation strategies

Disintermediation 

(Strategic risk of 
suppliers approaching 
customers directly) 

High  � Negotiate industry-leading service level agreements at acceptable prices
 � Nurture and maintain excellent personal relationships with key decision 

makers
 � Carry the full range of customer requirements (one stop shop)
 � Provide funding and business assistance to SMMEs 
 � Develop proprietary products (own brands)
 � Create “bricks and mortar” presence close to customers
 � Develop a virtual on-line store with value add tools to make business simpler 

for customers
 � Develop and maintain loyalty programmes

Credit risk 

(Finance risk of bad and  
doubtful debts)

High  � Negotiate credit insurance with a reputable credit insurer
 � Maintain a centralised credit department, staffed with skilled professionals
 � Ensure wide access to market intelligence in the field
 � Actively monitor and communicate with customers
 � Access diverse customer base to reduce concentration risk
 � Understand customers’ requirements and business

BEE status 

(Strategic risk of 
customers being unable 
to purchase from ARB)

High  � Undertake a BEE gap analysis and develop an action plan to actively address 

weaknesses
 � Make significant investments in training and internal staff development of 

black individuals
 � Make appropriate CSI investment
 � Expand business outside of South Africa
 � Select appropriate BEE partners who can add value to the business

Trading margin

(Financial risk of 
reducing trading margins 
due to increased 
competition and reduced 
level of projects)

High  � Employ and develop proper traders
 � Secure proprietary and own-brand products
 � Build better relationships with suppliers and customers
 � Develop market intelligence to access special prices and volume discounts
 � Strictly control the delegation of authority over margin levels
 � Maintain an IT system control over low margin business
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Description of risk Level of risk Mitigation strategies

Staff retention

(Operational risk of not 
attracting and retaining 
excellent skills)

High  � Offering market-related remuneration with a bias towards variable-

performance pay
 � Offer formal staff development and training programmes
 � Develop active key staff career path programmes
 � Maintain formal succession and contingency planning
 � Actively develop and manage personnel to increase the depth and breadth  

of management

Stock devaluation

(Impairments due to rapid 
decreases in exchange 
rates and the RCP)

Medium  � Actively manage the strata and procurement of stock at senior levels
 � Actively monitor the RCP and the stock levels of associated products
 � Aggressively manage slow moving stock at every level of management
 � Hedge foreign exchange exposure through forward cover for foreign 

purchases
 � Create suitable provisions for identified problem areas

CONCLUSION
The committee is of the opinion that it has adequately discharged its obligations during the course of the year. Furthermore, the 

committee is of the opinion that all material risks facing the Group have been identified, quantified and, where possible, mitigated as 

prescribed by the Risk Committee Charter.

Simon Downes

Risk Committee Chairman
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

I have pleasure in presenting the Audit Committee Report for the 

year ended 30 June 2017. This Report sets out the corporate 

governance disclosure for the Audit Committee. As required by 

the Companies Act, the functions that the Audit Committee have 

discharged during the year are fully set out in the Audit 

Committee Report contained in the Annual Financial Statements 

section on page 52 of this Integrated Report, which specifically 

covers the requirements of section 94(7)(f) of the Companies Act 

and the recommendations of the King III Report.

APPOINTMENT
Each member of the Audit Committee is individually appointed at 

each AGM as required by the Companies Act (part D, section 94). 

The JSE Listings Requirements also require all listed companies 

to appoint an Audit Committee that “must fulfil the role as set out 

in the King Code”.

MEMBERS
The Audit Committee comprises the following independent 

members, who were appointed by the shareholders at the 

Company’s AGM held on 9 November 2016:
 � James Dixon (Chairman) – Independent Non-Executive Director;
 � Ralph Patmore – Independent Non-Executive Director; and
 � Simon Downes – Independent Non-Executive Director. 

In addition to the above members, the Group CEO, Group CFO, 

Group Internal Audit Manager and the external auditors attend 

Audit Committee meetings by invitation.

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
The Act requires the Audit Committee to prepare a report which 

covers the following matters:
 � describe how the Audit Committee carried out its functions;
 � state whether the committee is satisfied that the internal and 

external auditors were independent of the Group; and
 � comment as appropriate on the accounting practices and the 

internal financial controls of the Group.

DUTIES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
A formal charter tasks the Audit Committee with reviewing the 

interim results, the annual financial statements and associated 

announcements, as well as understanding management’s 

accounting processes and policies and the external auditor’s 

involvement in these processes. 

The specific responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:
 � Internal control – receiving confirmation from management, 

the internal auditors and external auditors that there are 

sufficient internal controls developed and trained and that 

these controls have operated for the full year under review. 

This is corroborated by the absence of conflicting information 

in information provided to the Board, the tip off line and reports 

from external regularity bodies.

 � Financial reporting – reviewing the accounting policies 

adopted or any changes made and the measures introduced 

by management to enhance the accuracy and fair presentation 

of all matters proposed for inclusion in the annual financial 

statements and any other reports prepared with reference to 

the affairs of the Group for external distribution or publication, 

including those required by any regulatory or supervisory 

authority.

 � External audit – recommending the appointment of external 

auditors for approval by the shareholders, reviewing their 

performance and monitoring their independence. The Audit 

Committee also sets the principles for recommending the 

external auditors to perform non-audit services.

 � Financial Director – evaluating the performance of the 

Financial Director and the effectiveness of the finance function 

during the year under review and providing feedback in this 

regard to the Remuneration and Nomination Committee.

 � Sustainability and integrated reporting – overseeing the 

Group’s sustainability and integrated reporting and advising 

the Board on the need to engage an external assurance 

provider to review the accuracy and completeness of such 

reporting.
 � Risk management and IT governance – although a separate 

Risk sub-committee exists, the Audit Committee liaises 

with the Risk Committee insofar as financial reporting risks, 

internal controls, fraud, IT governance and in respect of any 

areas of overlap. In accordance with the recommendations 

of King III, IT governance is addressed as a separate agenda 

item at Risk Committee meetings and reported back on at 

Board meetings. 

ACTIVITIES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
The functions that the Audit Committee have discharged during 

the year are set out in the Audit Committee Report contained in 

the Annual Financial Statements section on page 52 of this 

Integrated Report, covering the requirements of section 94(7)(f) 

of the Companies Act and the recommendations of the King III 

Report. During the year, the Audit Committee met three times, 

which the Directors believe is sufficient for discharging  

the committee’s responsibilities. Additional meetings are 

convened as required. Details of Directors’ attendance at the 

Audit Committee meetings held during the year are set out on  

page 37.
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CONCLUSION
The duties and activities noted above assist in ensuring that the Group’s internal control environment, disciplines and procedures are 

adequate and were implemented for the full year under review to comply with the Companies Act, to minimise the financial risks of 

the Group and to provide adequate information in a timeous manner to enable management and the Audit Committee to fulfil 

their responsibilities.

The Audit Committee is of the opinion that its objectives were met during the year under review.

James Dixon

Audit Committee Chairman
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REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

I have pleasure in presenting the Committee’s Report for the year 

ended 30 June 2017.

MEMBERS
The committee currently comprises the following members:

 � Ralph Patmore (Chairman) – Independent Non-Executive Director;

 � Alan R Burke – Non-Executive Director;

 � Simon Downs – Independent Non-Executive Director; and

 � James Dixon – Independent Non-Executive Director.

In addition to the above members, the Group CEO and the Group 

CFO attend committee meetings by invitation, but may not 

participate in any discussions regarding their own remuneration.

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE
The committee operates under terms of a formal charter which 

requires it to meet at least twice a year in order to fulfil the 

functions assigned to it.

In compliance with the King Code, the Chairman of the Board is 

not eligible for appointment as chairman of the committee, but 

does preside as the chairman when the committee fulfils its 

oversight responsibilities on nomination matters and Board/

Director interactions. 

REMUNERATION RESPONSIBILITIES
 � To provide a mandate for the Group’s annual remuneration 

increases;

 � To provide guidance on other levels of remuneration, including 

minimum remuneration

 � To ensure that the Directors and senior executives are 

appropriately remunerated;

 � Authority for matters relating to employee benefits; and

 � Approval of short and long-term employee incentive schemes 

at both executive and divisional level.

REMUNERATION POLICY AND PHILOSOPHY
The Group’s philosophy is to set appropriate remuneration and 

profit incentive levels, considering levels of responsibility, market 

remuneration surveys and the need to attract, motivate and 

retain Directors, executives and individuals of a high calibre. 

The remuneration policy is endorsed annually, by means of a 

non-binding advisory vote, by shareholders.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Executive remuneration comprises three components:

 � guaranteed pay, specifically a monthly basic cash salary 

including employee benefits such as retirement funding and 

medical aid contributions;
 � a cash-based short-term or performance incentive, linked 

to the higher of a predetermined level of profit growth or a 

minimum required return on opening equity which, if achieved, 

is paid annually after finalisation of the Group’s audited 

results; and
 � a long-term incentive, being the cash-settled share 

appreciation rights plans which are applicable for the periods 

ending February 2017 and February 2018.

A cumulative PBT growth target plan has been introduced, 

effective for the year ended 30 June 2017 with the first payment 

effective June 2019. 

Executive Directors’ guaranteed pay is reviewed annually by the 

committee. Salaries are compared to available industry surveys 

and pay levels of other South African companies to ensure 

sustainable performance and market competitiveness.  

The individual salaries of Directors are reviewed annually in light 

of their own performance, experience, level of responsibility and 

Group performance. Executive Directors do not receive Directors’ 

fees for attending Board and sub-committee meetings.

Executive Directors’ emoluments for the year ended  

30 June 2017 are detailed in Note 23 on page 79 of the annual 

financial statements.
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OTHER MATTERS
The total remuneration for the year of the three highest paid employees who are not Directors of the Group are set out below:

Basic Bonuses Total

Employee 1 R3 270 871 R1 083 000 R4 353 871

Employee 2 R2 359 080 R812 000 R3 171 080

Employee 3 R2 299 500 R812 000 R3 111 500

Total R7 929 451 R2 707 000 R10 636 451

Fees paid to Directors are set out on page 79 of this Integrated 

Report.

Directors’ service contracts
Executive Directors are appointed in terms of written letters of 

appointment which endure indefinitely, are subject to termination 

on either one or two months’ notice and which contain a restraint 

of trade undertaking.

Succession planning
The committee reviews the Group’s succession plan and 

communicates any areas of concern to the Risk Committee 

and Board.

Non-Executive Directors’ fees
Non-Executive Directors are appointed in terms of written letters 

of appointment. In accordance with the recommendations of 

King III and international best practice, Non-Executive Directors’  

fees comprise a combination of a fixed annual retainer and 

meeting attendance fees. Non-Executive Directors do not receive  

short-term incentives nor do they participate in any long-term 

incentive schemes.

The fees paid to Non-Executive Directors for the year ended 

30 June 2017 are detailed in Note 23 on page 79 of the annual 

financial statements. These fees were approved by the committee, 

the Board of Directors and shareholders at the Group’s last AGM. 

At the AGM to be held on 9 November 2017 shareholders will be 

asked to pass a special resolution to approve the fees of Non-

Executive Directors until the next AGM as set out in the 

accompanying Notice of AGM.

NOMINATION RESPONSIBILITIES
The committee is responsible for regularly reviewing and making 

recommendations on the Group’s Board structure and the size 

and composition of the Board. The committee furthermore 

ensures that an appropriate balance exists between executive, 

non-executive and independent Directors and considers and 

approves the classification of Directors as being independent, in 

line with the King Code. It assists with the identification and 

nomination of new Directors and appointment by the Board  

and/or shareholders and oversees induction and training  

of Directors. The Board has a policy for gender and race 

representation that seeks to include all races and genders in the 

nomination process for any vacancies that become available.

MEETINGS OF THE COMMITTEE
During the year, the committee met three times, which the 

Directors believe is sufficient for discharging the committee’s 

responsibilities. Details of Directors’ attendance at the 

Remuneration Committee meetings held during the year are set 

out on page 37.

KING IV
The committee has started reviewing all aspects of the Company’s 

remuneration strategy, policy and structures to ensure 

compliance with the guidelines as set out in King IV.

Ralph Patmore

Remuneration and Nomination Committee Chairman
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SOCIAL AND ETHICS COMMITTEE REPORT

I have pleasure in presenting the Social and Ethics Committee 

Report for the year ended 30 June 2017.

MEMBERS
The Social and Ethics Committee currently comprises the 

following members:

 � Simon Downes (Chairman) – Independent Non-Executive 

Director;

 � James Dixon – Independent Non-Executive Director;

 � Grant Scrutton – Group CFO (appointed 20 September 2016);

 � Shannon Bester – CFO of ARB Electrical Wholesalers; and

 � Nellie Mlambo – Human Resources Manager of ARB Electrical 

Wholesalers. 

In addition to the above members, the Group CEO attends the 

Social and Ethics Committee meetings by invitation. 

ROLE OF THE SOCIAL AND ETHICS COMMITTEE
The committee is governed by a formal charter and its primary 

objective is to provide oversight on the impact which the Group’s 

activities have on the environment; consumers; employees; 

communities; stakeholders and all other members of the public 

by recognising that the ultimate objective of managing 

organisational integrity is to build an ethical corporate culture.

The specific responsibilities of the Social and Ethics Committee 

include, inter alia:

 � to build and sustain an ethical corporate culture in the Group;

 � to promote good corporate citizenship;

 � to care for the environment, health and public safety, including 

the impact of the Group’s activities and of its products;
 � to monitor the Group’s labour services and employment 

services; and 
 � to ensure that the Group’s code of conduct and ethics-related 

policies are complied with.

ACTIVITIES AND MEETINGS OF THE SOCIAL AND 
ETHICS COMMITTEE
During the year, the Social and Ethics Committee considered or 

reviewed the following aspects:
 � the development of a Group Intranet;
 � health and safety compliance levels;
 � the BBBEE scorecards and transformation strategies;
 � ARB Electrical’s bursary scheme;
 � donations and CSI initiatives;
 � ARB Electrical’s learnership programme; and
 � environmental impacts.

During the year, the Social and Ethics Committee met twice, 

which the Directors believe is sufficient to discharging the 

committee’s responsibilities. Additional meetings are convened 

as required. Details of Directors’ attendance at the Social and 

Ethics Committee meetings held during the year are set out on 

page 37.

Simon Downes

Social and Ethics Committee Chairman
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Annual financial statements

The Directors are required by the Companies Act of South Africa 

to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for 

the content and integrity of the consolidated financial statements 

included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that 

these consolidated financial statements comply with International 

Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as to form and content 

and present fairly the consolidated statement of financial position, 

results of operations and business of the Group, and explain the 

transactions and financial position of the business of the Group at 

the end of the financial year. The consolidated financial statements 

are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently 

applied throughout the Group and supported by reasonable and 

prudent judgements and estimates.

The Directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible 

for the system of internal financial control established by the 

Group and place considerable importance on maintaining a 

strong control environment. To enable the Directors to meet 

these responsibilities, the Board sets standards for internal 

control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost-

effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation 

of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective 

accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to 

ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored 

throughout the Group and all employees are required to maintain 

the highest ethical standards in ensuring the Group’s business is 

conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is 

above reproach.

The focus of risk management in the Group is on identifying, 

assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk 

across the Group. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, 

the Group endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate 

infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied 

and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The Directors are of the opinion, based on the information and 

explanations given by management and the internal auditors, 

that the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance 

that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation 

of the consolidated financial statements. However, any system 

of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and 

not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.  

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the financial 

statements. Based on forecasts and available cash resources 

the Directors have no reason to believe that the Group will not 

be a going concern in the foreseeable future. The consolidated 

financial statements support the viability of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by the 

independent auditing firm, PKF Durban, who have been given 

unrestricted access to all financial records and related data, 

including minutes of all meetings of shareholders, the Board of 

Directors and committees of the Board. The Directors believe 

that all representations made to the independent Auditor during 

the audit were valid and appropriate. The independent Auditor’s 

unqualified Audit Report is presented on page 55.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared 

under the supervision of the Group’s Chief Financial Officer,  

GM Scrutton CA(SA).

The consolidated financial statements as set out on pages 58 to 89 

were approved by the Board on 17 August 2017 and were signed 

on their behalf by:

Alan R Burke

Non-Executive Chairman 

Billy Neasham

Group Chief Executive Officer

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL
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I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the requirements as stated in section 88(2) of the Companies Act of South Africa, 

have been met and that all returns, as required of a public company in terms of the aforementioned Act, have been submitted to the 

Companies and Intellectual Property Commission and that such returns are true, correct and up to date.

Mario Louw

Company Secretary

11 Larch Close

Zwartkop X4

Centurion

0046

17 August 2017

CERTIFICATE OF THE COMPANY SECRETARY
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Annual financial statements

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit and Risk Committee is pleased to submit its report for 

the financial year ended 30 June 2017 in terms of section 94(7)(f) 

of the Companies Act, 2008.

The Audit Committee has adopted formal terms of reference, 

delegated to it by the Board of Directors, as its Audit Committee 

Charter. This charter is in line with the Companies Act, the King 

Report on Governance for South Africa 2009 (“King III”) and the 

JSE Listings Requirements. The committee has discharged the 

functions delegated to it in terms of its charter. This process is 

supported by the Risk Committee which monitors risk management 

and compliance activities.

During the year under review the committee performed the 

following duties:

1. Reviewed and recommended, for adoption by the Board, such

financial information that is required to be publicly disclosed,

which included the interim results for the six months ended

31 December 2016 and the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 30 June 2017.

2. Considered and satisfied itself that the independent Auditor,

PKF Durban, is independent.

3. Reviewed the scope, independence and objectivity of the

internal and independent Auditors’ audits.

4. Reviewed and approved the independent Auditor’s budgeted

fees and terms of engagement for the 2017 financial year.

5. Determined the nature and extent of non-audit related

services which the independent Auditor was permitted to

provide to the Group and reviewed the policy for the use of

the independent Auditor for non-audited-related services. All

non-audited-related service agreements between the Group

and the independent Auditor was pre-approved.

6. Reviewed and amended the Audit Committee Charter in line

with King III recommendations.

7. Reviewed the internal combined assurance plan for the 2017

financial year.

8. Reviewed the IT Governance structure for the Group.

9. Confirmed adequate whistle-blowing facilities were in place

throughout the Group and reviewed and considered action

taken with regard to incident reports.

10. Held separate meetings with management, the independent

Auditor and internal audit to discuss any problems and

reservations arising from the year-end audit, and other

matters, that they wished to discuss.

11. Noted that it had not received any complaints, either from

within or outside the Group, relating either to the accounting

practices, the content or auditing of the financial statements,

the internal financial controls or any other related matter.

12. Reviewed the effectiveness of the Audit Committee and its

members.

13. Recommended to the Board the reappointment of PKF Durban

as the Group’s independent Auditor and Mr RC Boulle as the

registered Auditor responsible for the audit for the year ending

30 June 2018, which will be considered at the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting (“AGM”).

14. Evaluated and satisfied itself as to the appropriateness of the

expertise and experience of the Group’s Chief Financial Officer

and the Company Secretary.

15. Satisfied itself with the expertise, resources and experience of

the Group’s finance function.

16. Considered the Group sustainability information as disclosed

in the integrated annual report.

Based on the information produced to the Audit Committee by 

the independent Auditor, internal Auditor and management, the 

committee is of the opinion that nothing has come to its attention 

that would suggest that the Group’s system of internal financial 

controls are not adequate or effective and do not form a basis 

for the presentation of reliable financial statements. For further 

details regarding the Audit Committee, shareholders are referred 

to the Corporate Governance Report on page 44 of this Integrated 

Report.

On behalf of the Audit Committee

James Dixon

Audit Committee Chairman

17 August 2017
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

1. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS
  ARB Holdings Ltd is a holding and investment company which 

owns investments in closely related trading and distribution 

businesses, as well as fixed property and vehicles for letting.

 Electrical Division
  ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd together with its wholly 

owned subsidiaries, a majority owned subsidiary (74%), 

is the Company’s largest operating division. It is a black-

empowered electrical wholesaler operating in southern and 

South Africa offering a wide range of locally manufactured 

and imported products including power and instrumentation 

cabling; overhead line hardware and conductors; insulators; 

transformers and general electrical contracting materials. 

Clients range across large and heavy industry, parastatals, 

major construction groups, mining houses and electrical 

contractors. The subsidiary continues to expand its footprint 

by marketing through its Connect stores.

  ARB Global (Pty) Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary, sells a range 

of locally manufactured and imported electrical products 

across South Africa’s borders.

  CED – Consolidated Electrical Distributor (Pty) Ltd (“CED”), a 

wholly owned subsidiary, is the sole distributor of CHINT low 

voltage products and the Horizon plugs and socket range in the 

SADC region.

 Lighting Division
  Eurolux (Pty) Ltd, a majority owned subsidiary (60%), imports 

and distributes electrical light fittings, lamps and related 

electrical accessories mainly to retail and wholesale stores 

and principally in South Africa.

 Corporate Division
  ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary, services 

all of the electrical division’s IT requirements and sells 

computer hardware and software support. 

  ARB Holdings Ltd also owns a property portfolio and rents 

these properties and some motor vehicles to certain of the 

Electrical division’s branch operations. During the year, the 

Company disposed of its property in Rayon Road East London 

for R12,4m and purchased a new property in Bowles Road, 

East London for R7,4m which it is currently developing at an 

estimated additional cost of R17,8m. In addition, the Company 

has paid a R5,0m deposit for new land that has been acquired 

by the Corporate division which will be developed during the 

course of the next 18 months to house a new distribution 

centre for the Electrical Division’s Gauteng operation which 

has outgrown its current premises. It is possible that this 

R110m significant development may require some minimal 

bank finance.

2. FINANCIAL RESULTS
  The operating results and statement of financial position of the 

Group are fully set out in the attached financial statements.  
In our opinion, the financial statements do not require 
further comment. 

  A seven-year summary of the Group’s earnings is presented on 
page 19. 

3. SHARE CAPITAL
 Authorised share capital
  The authorised share capital amounts to R100 000, being  

1 000 000 000 ordinary shares of 0,01 cents each. There were 
no changes to the authorised share capital during the year 
under review.

 Issued share capital
  The issued share capital amounts to R23 500, being  

235 000 000 ordinary shares of 0,01 cents each. There were 
no changes to the issued share capital during the year 
under review.

4. DIVIDENDS
  The board has approved a 30% dividend cover ratio, subject 

to any future funding requirements (such as Capex) and 
an informal policy to return excess cash to shareholders.  
A final dividend was declared for the 2016 year and paid to 
shareholders during the year under review of R77 785 000  
(33,1 cents per share, comprising an ordinary dividend of  
23,1 cents per share and a special dividend of 10,0 cents per 
share) [2015: R70 735 000 (20,1 cents ordinary dividend and 
10,0 cents special dividend per share)].

  Subsequent to year-end, the Board declared a final dividend 
to shareholders of 25,0 cents per share. This is in line with 
the Company’s dividend policy to distribute up to a maximum 
of 40% of net profit after taxation, taking into account 
distributable reserves and cash available for distribution. In 
addition the Board has resolved to pay a special dividend of 
10,00 cents per share in order to return excess cash to the 
shareholders.

5. DIRECTORS
  The Directors of the Company during the year under review 

and to the date of this Report are as follows: 
 AR Burke Non-Executive Chairman
 RB Patmore Lead Independent Non-Executive Director
 WR Neasham Group Chief Executive Officer 
 JS Dixon Independent Non-Executive Director 
 ST Downes Independent Non-Executive Director
 GM Scrutton Financial Director and Chief Financial Officer 

 Directors’ remuneration is reported in Note 23 (related parties).
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6.  DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS
  No material contracts in which Directors have an interest were entered into during the year. All transactions with related parties are 

detailed in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

7. DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDING IN THE ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

Shares (000’s)

Direct

 beneficially

Indirect

 beneficially

Percentage 

held

2017
Alan R Burke (Chairman)* 18 523 108 855 54,2
Simon Downes#* – 600 0,3
William Neasham (CEO) 4 862 75 2,1
Jason Burke** 68 – –
Blayne Burke** 74 – –
James Dixon#* 20 – –

23 547 109 530 56,6

2016
Alan R Burke (Chairman)* 18 523 108 762 54,2
Simon Downes#* – 600 0,3
William Neasham (CEO) 4 862 75 2,1
Clinton Cockerell** (resigned 31 July 2015) 5 649 24 2,4
Jason Burke** 68 – –
Blayne Burke** 70 – –
James Dixon#* (appointed 18 January 2016) 20 – –
Shannon Bester** 10 – –

29 202 109 461 59,0

 * Non-executive.
 ** Director of subsidiary, ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd.
 # Independent.

 There have been no changes in the Directors’ shareholdings between the year-end and the date of this report.

8. BORROWINGS
  The Directors have established credit facilities with various financial institutions for use by the Company and its subsidiary companies.  

The Directors did not exceed any authorised levels of borrowings during the year under review.

9. SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS
  The only special resolutions passed during the period were those passed at the AGM, and included in the 2016 Integrated Report, 

giving Directors general authority to repurchase up to 10% of the shares in the Company; approving the Non-Executive Directors’ 

remuneration, financial assistance of subsidiaries (in terms of s44 and s45 of the Companies Act) and changing the Memorandum of 

Incorporation (“MOI”) for fractions of shares. No shares were repurchased during the year. These resolutions will again be proposed 

at the forthcoming AGM.

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
  The only material subsequent events are the declaration of the dividend for the 2017 financial year (referred to in 4 above), the 

purchase and payment of the Lords View property for R47,1m and the cancellation of the related property purchase guarantees.

17 August 2017

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ARB HOLDINGS LTD

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

OPINION 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ARB Holdings Ltd and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 58 to 89, 
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the 
Group as at 30 June 2017, and its consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa.

BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors Code of Professional Conduct for 
Registered Auditors (“IRBA Code”) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in 
South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA Code and in accordance with other ethical 
requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Code is consistent with the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts A and B). We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

KEY AUDIT MATTERS
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of goodwill and indefinite useful life trademarks
As disclosed in Note 11, the consolidated financial 
statements include goodwill of R18m (2016: R18m) and 
indefinite useful life trademarks of R58,5m (2016: R58,5m).

As required by IAS 36 Impairment of Assets, the Directors 
conduct annual impairment tests to assess recoverability 
of the carrying value of goodwill and indefinite useful life 
trademarks. This is performed using discounted cash flow 
models which involve a number of key assumptions which 
are presented in Note 11 to the consolidated financial 
statements. These include:

 � The growth rate and terminal growth rate is considered 
to be highly subjective since it is based on management’s 
experience and expectations rather than observable 
market data.

 � The discount rate is based on a weighted average cost of 
capital calculation which is complex.

The impairment tests of these assets is considered to be 
a key audit matter due to the value of the assets and the 
extent of judgement and estimate required.

We focused our testing on the key assumptions used in the 

discounted cash flow models.

Our audit procedures included:
 � We assessed whether the approach adopted by management 

in the discounted cash flow model was in line with market 

practice and the applicable requirements of IAS 36 

Impairment of Assets
 � We have tested the mathematical accuracy of the discounted 

cash flow model through re-performing the calculations
 � We analysed the future projected cash flows used in the model 

to determine whether they were reasonable and supportable
 � We subjected the key assumptions to sensitivity analyses
 � We assessed the appropriateness of the growth and terminal 

growth rates and tested the weighted average cost of capital 

calculation and the variables used therein 

We found that the key assumptions used by management 

were reasonable and the growth and discount rates used were 

appropriate in the circumstances. We consider the disclosure of 

the goodwill and trademarks to be acceptable.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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OTHER INFORMATION
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the Directors’ report, the Audit Committee’s 

Report and the Company Secretary’s Certificate as required by the 

Companies Act of South Africa, which we obtained prior to the 

date of this report, and the annual report, which is expected to be 

made available to us after that date. Other information does not 

include the consolidated financial statements and our Auditor’s 

Report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not 

cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion 

or any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial 

statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 

materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements 

or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 

materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on 

the other information obtained prior to the date of this Auditor’s 

report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 

other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 

nothing to report in this regard. 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair 

presentation of the consolidated financial statements in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and 

the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, and for 

such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary 

to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements 

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors 

are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a 

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease 

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF 
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

issue an Auditor’s Report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 

an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 

in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 

the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise 

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism 

throughout the audit. We also: 
 � Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 

the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 

or the override of internal control. 
 � Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the 

audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. 
 � Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

disclosures made by the Directors. 
 � Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the 

going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit 

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 

to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 

Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 

that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 

attention in our Auditor’s Report to the related disclosures in 

the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 

on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our Auditor’s 

Report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 

Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 � Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 

consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, 

and whether the consolidated financial statements represent 

the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 

achieves fair presentation. 
 � Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the 

financial information of the entities or business activities 

within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated 

financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 

supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain 

solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
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We communicate with the directors regarding, among other 

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we 

have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships 

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine 

those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 

consolidated financial statements of the current period and 

are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters 

in our Auditor’s Report unless law or regulation precludes 

public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 

circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our Report because the adverse consequences 

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 

interest benefits of such communication. 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
REQUIREMENTS
In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette  

Number 39475 dated 4 December 2015, we report that PKF 

Durban has been the Auditor of ARB Holdings Ltd for 17 years.

PKF Durban

Partner: RC Boulle

Registered Auditor

17 August 2017

Durban 
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for the year ended 30 June 2017

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

R000’s Note(s) 2017 2016

Revenue 2 479 418 2 489 791

Cost of sales (1 885 006) (1 941 677)

Gross profit 594 412 548 114

Other income 9 848 6 231

Selling, administration and distribution costs (389 805) (337 630)

Profit before interest and taxation 3 214 455 216 715

Interest received 5 25 998 19 631

Interest paid 6 (4 333) (7 720)

Profit before taxation 236 120 228 626

Taxation 7 (64 654) (68 455)

Profit for the year 171 466 160 171

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified into profit or loss

Revaluation of property 6 400 5 679

Taxation of other comprehensive income (1 455) (3 230)

Total other comprehensive income 8 4 945 2 449

Total comprehensive income 176 411 162 620

Profit for the year attributable to:

Non-controlling interests 24 874 24 594

ARB ordinary shareholders 146 592 135 577

171 466 160 171

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Non-controlling interests 24 874 24 594

ARB ordinary shareholders 151 537 138 026

176 411 162 620

Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents) 9.1 62,38 57,69

Headline and diluted earnings per share (cents) 9.2 61,89 59,74

Dividends per share (cents) 9.3 33,10 30,10

Ordinary dividend 9.3 23,10 20,10

Special dividend 9.3 10,00 10,00
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at 30 June 2017

R000’s Note(s) 2017 2016 

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 10 237 380 225 313

Intangible assets 11 77 848 78 003

Investment in joint venture 12 3 233 1 041

Deferred taxation 13 5 797 6 957

324 258 311 314

Current assets

Inventory 14 471 992 439 913

Trade and other receivables 15 416 721 431 775

Loans receivable 16 2 956 7 289

Cash and cash equivalents 17 306 642 243 269

1 198 311 1 122 246

Total assets 1 522 569 1 433 560

Equity and liabilities

Equity and reserves

Share capital and premium 18 116 174 116 174

Revaluation reserve 19 70 480 71 002

Accumulated profits 712 286 638 012

Attributable to ARB ordinary shareholders 898 940 825 188

Non-controlling interests 170 868 161 594

1 069 808 986 782

Non-current liabilities

Deferred lease payments 20 677 393

Put option liability 22 – 84 510

Deferred taxation 13 40 471 41 469

41 148 126 372

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 21 314 295 316 416

Taxation payable 6 311 2 850

Put option liability 22 91 007 –

Deferred lease payments 20 – 1 140

411 613 320 406

Total equity and liabilities 1 522 569 1 433 560

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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for the year ended 30 June 2017

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

R000’s
Share capital

 and premium
Revaluation

 reserve
Accumulated

 profits

Equity
 attributable to
 ARB ordinary
 shareholders

Non-
controlling

 interests Total

Balance at 30 June 2015 116 174 70 302 571 421 757 897 152 600 910 497

Total comprehensive income  

for the year – 2 449 135 577 138 026 24 594 162 620

Profit for the year – – 135 577 135 577 24 594 160 171

Other comprehensive income – 2 449 – 2 449 – 2 449

Net transfer from reserve (1 749) 1 749 – – –

Dividends – – (70 735) (70 735) (15 600) (86 335)

Balance at 30 June 2016 116 174 71 002 638 012 825 188 161 594 986 782

Total comprehensive income  

for the year – 4 945 146 592 151 537 24 874 176 411

Profit for the year – – 146 592 146 592 24 874 171 466

Other comprehensive income – 4 945 – 4 945 – 4 945

Net transfer from reserve – (5 467) 5 467 – – –

Dividends – – (77 785) (77 785) (15 600) (93 385)

Balance at 30 June 2017 116 174 70 480 712 286 898 940 170 868 1 069 808
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for the year ended 30 June 2017

R000’s Note(s) 2017 2016

Operating cash flow before working capital changes 27.1 226 167 236 058

Working capital changes

Increase in inventories (32 079) (51 940)

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 15 054 (80 430)

(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (2 121) 64 231

Cash generated by operating activities 207 021 167 919

Interest received 5 25 998 19 631

Dividends paid (93 385) (86 335)

Income tax paid 27.2 (62 486) (67 092)

Net cash generated by operating activities 77 148 34 123

Cash flows from investing activities

Loan repaid 4 333 –

Property, plant and equipment acquired 10 (33 894) (19 943)

Proceeds on disposals of property, plant and equipment 27.3 15 786 9 598

Net cash utilised in investing activities (13 775) (10 345)

Cash flows from financing activities

Loans advanced – (7 289)

Net cash utilised in financing activities – (7 289)

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 63 373 16 489

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 243 269 226 780

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 17 306 642 243 269

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 



Annual financial statements

|  ARB Integrated Report 201762

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The consolidated financial statements of ARB Holdings Ltd (“the Company”) are prepared in accordance with IFRS and its 

interpretations by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) in issue and effective for the Group at 30 June 2017, the 

SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee, the Financial Reporting Pronouncements as 

issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council, the JSE Listings Requirements and the Companies Act of South Africa. These 

policies have been applied consistently to all years presented.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for land and buildings and certain financial 

instruments which are measured at fair value, and incorporate the principal accounting policies listed below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and 

assumptions that may affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.  

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be 

reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of 

assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 

on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 

only affects that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the 

financial statements, are disclosed in Note 2.1.

New standards and interpretations issued and not yet adopted
The Group has not early adopted the following new, revised or amended pronouncements that have been issued by the IASB as they 

are not yet effective for the financial year beginning 1 July 2016 and, while the impact is still to be fully assessed, it is not expected 

that they will have a material impact on the financial statements other than for IFRS 16 Leases. The Group conducts some of 

its business from premises occupied in terms of operating leases which vary in tenure from three to five years. Consequently 

various statement of financial position and comprehensive income disclosures and ratios will be impacted when IFRS 16 Leases is 

effected in the Group’s financial statements for the year ending 30 June 2020. In this regard, the future minimum lease payments 

in terms of non-cancellable operating leases are recorded in Note 25.3 and the lease payments recognised as an expense during 

the year are recorded in Note 3. The Board anticipates that the new standards, amendments and interpretations will be adopted in 

the Group’s consolidated financial statements when they become effective. Certain other new standards and interpretations have 

been issued but are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Standard Details of amendments

Annual periods

beginning 

on or after

IFRS 9: 

Financial 

instruments

 � Replaces IAS 39 and provides more guidance on measurement of financial 

instruments.
 � Introduces a new approach to the classification of financial assets, a single 

impairment model.
 � New model for hedge accounting that aligns accounting treatment with the risk 

management activity with enhanced disclosures. 

1 January  

2018

IFRS 15:

Revenue from 

Contracts with 

Customers

 � New guidance on recognition of revenue that requires recognition of revenue in a 

manner that depicts the transfer of goods or services to customers at an amount 

that reflects the consideration the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for 

those goods or service.

1 January  

2018
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Standard Details of amendments

Annual periods

beginning 

on or after

IFRS 16:

Leases

 � Requires lessees to account for leases “on balance sheet” by recognising a “right  

of use” asset and lease liability.
 � It also changes the definition of a lease, sets requirements on how to account for 

the asset and lability, provides exemptions for short-term leases and leases of 

low value assets, changes the accounting for sale-and-leaseback arrangements, 

largely retains IAS 17’s approach to lessor accounting and introduces new 

disclosure requirements.

1 January  

2019

2.1 Accounting estimates and judgements
The estimates and judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 

assets and liabilities within the next financial year are as follows:

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment of inventory

The inventory obsolescence provision is management’s judgement, based on historic sales trends and its assessment of 

quality and volume, and the extent to which the inventory on hand at reporting date will not be sold or will be sold below cost. 

Impairment of gross trade receivables

Provision is made for doubtful debts based on management’s judgement of the prospect of recovering the debt. Where 

management has determined that the recovery of the debt is doubtful, that amount, less the anticipated insurance recovery, 

is provided for immediately.

Residual values and useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated over management’s judgement of its useful life taking into account residual 

values where appropriate. Assessments of useful lives and residual values are performed annually after considering factors 

such as relevant market information, the condition of the asset and management’s consideration. In assessing the residual 

values, the Group considers the remaining life of the assets, their projected disposal value and future market conditions.

 � Vehicles

The Group has a policy of utilising all vehicles for a period between four and five years. It is estimated that vehicles have 

a residual value approximating 20% to 40%, depending on their age and nature of use, of their initial purchase price 

based on historical sales trends.

 � Buildings

The Group has a policy of utilising all buildings for a period of 50 years. The estimated residual values are determined 

with reference to expected proceeds on disposal adjusted for current market prices and trends. 

The estimates are reviewed at each financial year-end and if estimates change the residual values and useful lives are 

adjusted for accordingly and the changes accounted for prospectively.

Impairment of intangible assets and goodwill

The Group tests for impairment at each reporting date or more frequently if there are indicators that the intangible assets 

and goodwill may be impaired. The recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit is determined based on the discounted 

cash flow method, taking into account financial forecasts over a five-year period. Key assumptions applied in the  

cash-generating unit’s future revenue, gross profit and cost forecasts are based on management’s judgement and estimates. 

These cash flows are then discounted and compared to the current carrying value and, if lower, the assets are impaired to 

the present value of the cash flows. A discount rate has been used, taking into account managements’ judgement of the 

level of risk associated with the cash-generating unit.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
2.1 Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Revaluation of land and buildings 

The Group values the land and buildings with the assistance of an independent valuer with reference to the valuer’s 

judgement of current market conditions, recent sales transactions of similar geographical locations and the present value 

of future rental income.

 � Fair value measurement and valuation process

The measurement of non-financial assets at fair value takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate 

economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would 

use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available 

to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the 

fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 

as a whole:

– Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

– Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 

directly or indirectly observable; and

– Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 

is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines 

whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level 

input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Contingent liabilities

Management applies its judgement to advice it receives from its attorneys, advocates and other advisors in assessing if an 

obligation is probable, more likely than not, or remote. This judgement application is used to determine if the obligation is 

recognised as a liability in the form of a provision or disclosed as a contingent liability.

2.2 Basis of consolidation
These financial statements are the consolidated financial statements of ARB Holdings Ltd and entities controlled by it and 

its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Group has control of the voting rights of the entity, is exposed to or has rights 

to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to use its voting rights to affect its returns.

Investment in subsidiaries

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins from the date the investor gains control of an investee and ceases when the investor 

loses control of an investee.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of the 

acquisition is measured as the fair value of assets transferred, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred at the 

date of exchange. Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between Group 

companies are eliminated.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position separately from 

the equity attributable to equity owners of the parent company. Non-controlling shareholders’ interest may initially be 

measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling shareholders’ interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the 

acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on each acquisition individually. Subsequent 

to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition 

plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to  

non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)



ARB Integrated Report 2017 | 65

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions comprises the excess of the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the fair 

value of any previously held interests and the recognised value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree over the net 

amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually. Gains and 

losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

2.3 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, except for land and buildings, are initially recorded at cost less any accumulated depreciation 

and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is computed by allocating the depreciable amount of an asset on a 

systematic basis over its useful. Residual values and useful lives are assessed at the end of every financial year and the 

year’s depreciation determined.

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes are stated 

in the statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation. Revaluations 

are performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amounts do not differ materially from those that would be 

determined using fair values at the reporting date.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of such land and buildings is credited in equity to the revaluation reserve 

except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss in 

which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease in the 

carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is charged to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds 

the balance, if any, held in the properties’ revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. On disposal of 

the revalued asset, the related revaluation reserve is transferred in equity to retained income. 

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated over their useful lives as follows:

Plant and equipment 5 to 15 years

Office furniture and fittings 6 years

Office equipment 5 to 6 years

Computer equipment 3 years

Leasehold improvements over the shorter of useful life or the term of the lease

Buildings 50 years

Vehicles 4 to 5 years

Land is not depreciated.

Where the estimated residual value of an asset is above its carrying value, no depreciation is recognised.

2.4 Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are shown at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

Goodwill is an indefinite life intangible and the trademark does not have a foreseeable limit to the period over which it 

is expected to generate cash flows. Amortisation is not provided for in respect of these intangible assets. For all other 

intangible assets, amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful life.

Software development costs are amortised over 10 years. The carrying value of intangible assets is reviewed for impairment 

annually or more frequently if there are indicators that the intangible assets may be impaired. Amortisation periods and 

methods are reviewed annually and are adjusted if appropriate.

2.5 Impairment
The carrying amounts of the assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of 

impairment. An impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss whenever the carrying amount exceeds the fair value. 
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
2.6 Operating leases

Leases of assets under which all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified 

as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the 

period of the lease. The difference between the amounts expensed and paid gives rise to an asset or a liability.

2.7 Inventory
Inventory consists of power and instrumentation cable, overhead line conductor and equipment, general electrical contracting 

materials and lamps and light fittings purchased for resale and is valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.  

Cost is determined using the weighted average cost basis. Adequate provision is made for obsolete, redundant and slow 

moving inventory.

2.8 Investments in joint ventures
Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, on initial recognition 

the investment in a joint venture is recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the 

investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The investor’s share of the investee’s profit 

or loss is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss. Distributions received from an investee reduce the carrying amount of 

the investment. Transaction with joint ventures are not eliminated on consolidation.

2.9 Financial instruments
The Group classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial 

liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Financial instruments 

are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 

acquisition or issue of the financial instrument, except for financial assets and financial liabilities at “fair value through 

profit or loss”, which are initially measured at fair value, excluding transaction costs which are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been 

transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. Financial liabilities are 

derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Loans receivable and payable, trade and other receivables

Loans receivable and payable are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method and 

are stated at fair value. 

Put option liability 

Written put options on the shares of a subsidiary held by non-controlling interests entitle the non-controlling interests to 

sell their interest in the subsidiary to the Group. The Group records a financial liability for its contractual obligation to pay 

the put option at the present value of the estimated option price discounted from the date the option is first exercisable to 

the reporting date. In recognising this liability, the non-controlling interest is derecognised and any excess or shortfall is 

charged or realised directly in accumulated profits in the statement of changes in equity. Dividends paid to the derecognised 

non-controlling interests are charged to profit and loss.

The unwinding of the present value discount on this financial liability is recorded in finance charges. The financial liability 

is fair valued at the end of each financial year and any changes in the fair value of the liability as a result of changes in 

assumptions used to estimate the future option price are also recognised in profit and loss.

Once the put option is exercisable, the option price variables are known and calculated in terms of the contract. Refer to Note 22.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are subsequently remeasured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances, money market instruments and call deposits. Cash and cash 

equivalents are measured at amortised cost.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Forward exchange contracts (“FECs”) 

The Group enters into forward exchange contracts in order to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk. Derivatives are 

initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and subsequently held at fair value in the 

statement of financial position within “other receivables” or “other payables” (as applicable). Changes in the fair value of 

any derivative instruments are recognised immediately in profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

All financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting date.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statements of financial position when there is 

a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise 

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.10 Revenue recognition
Group revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods sold in the ordinary course 

of the Group’s activities and is shown net of value-added taxes, estimated returns, rebates and discounts after eliminating 

sales within the Group. The Group recognises revenue when the amount can be reliably measured, it is probable that future 

economic benefits will flow to the entity and when the specific criteria have been met. 

The consideration received from customers is recorded as revenue to the extent that the Group has performed its contractual 

obligations in respect of that consideration and the significant risks and rewards have been transferred to the purchaser.

2.11 Employee benefits 
Short-term employee benefits

The cost of all short-term benefits is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service. 

The accruals for employee entitlements to salaries, bonus and annual leave represent the amount which the Group has 

a present obligation to pay as a result of employees’ services provided to the reporting date. These accruals have been 

calculated at undiscounted amounts based on current salary rates.

Retirement benefits

The Group contributes to defined contribution funds. Contributions to defined contribution funds are charged against 

income as incurred.

2.12 Income taxation
Current tax

The charge for current tax is based on the results for the year adjusted for items which are tax exempt or are not tax 

deductible. Tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts and tax bases of assets 

and liabilities shown on the statement of financial position. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is 

realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 

reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 

assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

2.13 Dividends
Dividend distributions to the Company’s shareholders are recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the 

period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s Directors.

2.14 Contingencies 
Contingent liabilities are a possible obligation whose existence will be confirmed by a future event or a present obligation 

which cannot be recognised because the outflow is not probable or the amount cannot be measured reliably.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
2.15 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are converted to the respective functional currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the date 

of the transaction. Gains or losses on translation are recognised in profit or loss. At the end of the reporting period foreign 

currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary 

items or on translating monetary items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition 

during the period, or in previous consolidated financial statements, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which 

they arise.

2.16 Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

2.17 Earnings per share and headline earnings per share
Earnings per share is based on attributable profit for the year divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 

in issue during the year. Headline earnings per share is based on the same calculation as earnings per share except that 

attributable profit specifically excludes items as set out in Circular 2/2015: “Headline Earnings” issued by the South African 

Institute of Chartered Accountants. 

2.18 Operating segments
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-

maker. The chief operating decision-making body who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing operating 

segments has been identified as the Group Chief Executive Officer. 

Segment operating assets and liabilities are only those that can be specifically identified within a particular segment.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R000’s Note(s) 2017 2016

3. PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXATION
Profit before interest and taxation is arrived at after taking

Into account the following items:

Income

Equity income from joint venture 12 2 192 1 041

Surplus on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3 732 –

Exchange rate profits on foreign exchange – 6 579

Expenditure

Exchange rate losses on foreign exchange 2 556 3 819

Depreciation and amortisation 13 828 11 517

Depreciation 10 13 673 11 361

Amortisation of intangible assets 11 155 156

Auditors’ remuneration 1 596 1 233 

Operating lease charges – premises 21 896 14 990

Allowance for impairment – inventory 14 4 244 1 302

Allowance for impairment – trade receivables 15 2 786 (2 498)

Impairment of land 2 500 –

Impairment of goodwill 11 – 5 500

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment –  1 022

Put option fair value adjustment 22 2 164 1 476

Dividends paid to derecognised NCI now expensed 4 800 3 600

4. STAFF COSTS
Short-term employee benefits 170 199 165 814

Contributions to retirement funds 14 321 12 008

Other employment benefits 11 411 7 333

Other staff costs 10 598 11 388

206 529 196 543

Short-term employee benefits comprise salaries, commissions and bonuses paid.

Other employment benefits comprise travel allowances, fringe benefits on the use of company vehicles and contributions to 

medical aid funds.

Other staff costs comprise accruals raised but not paid in respect of the future liability for bonuses, as well as staff training and 

related expenditure.

Staff costs include key management personnel (as defined in Note 23) and excludes Directors’ remuneration (Note 23).

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plan

It is the policy of the Group to provide retirement benefits to all its employees. A number of defined contribution provident and 

pension funds, all of which are governed by the Pensions Fund Act of 1956, exist for this purpose. These include the Alexander 

Forbes Retirement Fund, Investment Solutions, Liberty Corporate Provident Fund and Momentum Funds at Work. All the schemes 

are funded by Group contributions, which are charged to the statement of comprehensive income as they are incurred. 

for the year ended 30 June 2017
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for the year ended 30 June 2017

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R000’s Note(s) 2017 2016

5. INTEREST RECEIVED
Financial institutions 18 777 13 495

Trade receivables 6 721 5 269

Joint venture 500 867

25 998 19 631

6. INTEREST PAID
Unwinding of put option liability discount to present value 22 (4 333) (7 720)

7. TAXATION
SA normal tax

 � Current taxation (66 400) (67 650)

 � Prior years 453 –

Deferred taxation

 � Current year temporary differences 1 293 (805)

Tax for the year (64 654) (68 455)

% %

SA normal taxation rate 28,00 28,00

Adjusted for:

Exempt income (0,62) –

Non-deductible expenses – 1,94

Effective rate of taxation 27,38 29,94

R000’s 2017 2016

8. TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Revaluation of land 6 025 2 130

Revaluation of buildings 375 3 549

6 400 5 679

Taxation on revaluation of land (1 350) (477)

Taxation on revaluation of buildings (105) (994)

CGT inclusion rate change – (1 759)

Total deferred taxation (1 455) (3 230)

Total other comprehensive income 4 945 2 449

The tax charge in respect of land is calculated at the effective Capital Gains Tax (“CGT”) rate.
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R000’s 2017 2016

9. EARNINGS AND DIVIDENDS PER SHARE
There are no instruments that have a dilutive impact on the shares in issue

9.1 Basic and diluted earnings per share
Basic earnings as disclosed 146 592 135 577

Weighted number of shares 235 000 235 000

Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents) 62,38 57,69

9.2 Headline and diluted headline earnings per share
Basic earnings as disclosed 146 592 135 577

Impairment of goodwill – 5 500

Impairment of land 2 500 –

(Surplus)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (3 732) 747

Taxation thereon 227 –

Non-controlling interests therein (145) (1 430)

Headline earnings 145 442 140 394

Headline and diluted earnings per share (cents) 61,89 59,74

9.3 Dividends per share
Dividends declared during the year 77 785 70 735

Number of shares 235 000 235 000

Dividends per share (cents) 33,10 30,10

Ordinary dividend per share (cents) 23,10 20,10

Special dividend per share (cents) 10,00 10,00

The final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2017 which has only been declared after year-end has not been included as a 

liability in the financial statements.

2017 2016

R000’s
Cost/

valuation
Accumulated
 depreciation

Carrying
 value

Cost/
valuation

Accumulated
 depreciation

Carrying 
value

10. PROPERTY, PLANT  
AND EQUIPMENT
Group

Land 104 336 – 104 336 91 311 – 91 311

Buildings 85 031 (1 233) 83 798 87 770 (880) 86 890

Plant and equipment 18 588 (6 995) 11 593 14 615 (5 132) 9 483

Vehicles 42 318 (19 883) 22 435 43 273 (17 117) 26 156

Office furniture and fittings 10 900 (3 582) 7 318 7 474 (2 556) 4 918

Leasehold improvements 3 198 (1 016) 2 182 3 191 (794) 2 397

Office equipment 3 606 (1 722) 1 884 2 885 (1 288) 1 597

Computer equipment 6 329 (2 495) 3 834 3 983 (1 422) 2 561

274 306 (36 926) 237 380 254 502 (29 189) 225 313
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment can be reconciled as follows:

R000’s

Carrying 
value at the

 beginning 
of the year Additions

Revaluation
 and

 impairment Disposals Depreciation

Carrying 
value at 
the end 

of the year

2017

Land 91 311 12 200 3 525 (2 700) – 104 336

Buildings 86 890 1 986 375 (5 100) (353) 83 798

Plant and equipment 9 483 4 615 – (3) (2 502) 11 593

Vehicles 26 156 6 757 – (3 936) (6 542) 22 435

Office furniture and fittings 4 918 4 232 – – (1 833) 7 318

Leasehold improvements 2 397 579 – (388) (406) 2 182

Office equipment 1 597 685 – 119 (518) 1 884

Computer equipment 2 561 2 840 – (46) (1 521) 3 834

225 313 33 894 3 900 (12 054) (13 673) 237 380

2016

Land 92 181 – 2 130 (3 000) – 91 311

Buildings 89 114 371 3 549 (5 700)  (444) 86 890

Plant and equipment 6 022 5 991 – (67) (2 463) 9 483

Vehicles 27 376 5 234 – (1 641) (4 813) 26 156

Office furniture and fittings 2 421 3 674 – – (1 177) 4 918

Leasehold improvements 940 1 910 – (158) (295) 2 397

Office equipment 1 890 487 – (1) (779) 1 597

Computer equipment 1 728 2 276 – (53) (1 390) 2 561

221 672 19 943 5 679 (10 620) (11 361) 225 313

A register of land and buildings is available to shareholders at the registered office of the Company. No properties have been 

provided as security. If the cost model had been applied, the carrying value of the land would have been R36,8m (2016: R27,6m) and 

the buildings would have been R59,8m (2016: R57,8m). The Company has a “call option” to acquire the property held by a company 

controlled by certain key management of one of the subsidiary companies (Eurolux) for cash at externally appraised market value 

at date of exercise of the option. 

The fair value of properties is determined every three years and, in the intervening years, are updated annually by an independent 

professionally qualified valuator, Glen MacMillan (M.I.V.S.A.; S.A.C.V. No. 2964) who has 30 years’ valuation experience. These full 

fair value valuations were determined at 30 June 2017 using the income method for the combined valuation and the comparable 

method for land valuation. This involved estimating the future net annual income of the properties and capitalising this at an 

appropriate discount rate. The cash flows were estimated based on external evidence of current rentals for similar properties in 

similar locations. In estimating the fair value of the land and buildings, the highest and best use is their current use. There has 

been no change in the valuation technique used during the prior full valuation or the two previous years’ interim valuations. The 

fair value measurement of land and buildings has been classified at a level 3 (2016: 3). There were no transfers between fair value 

levels 1, 2 or 3 during the year.

for the year ended 30 June 2017

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
The significant and key assumptions used in the fair value measurement are as follows:

Material assumptions
2017

%
2016

%

Average portfolio capitalisation rate 10,63 11,77

Average portfolio cost ratio 24,71 22,87

If the average portfolio capitalisation rate changed by 0,50% upwards or downwards then the fair value adjustment to the portfolio 
carrying value would have decreased by R7,8m (2016: R7,6m) and increased by R8,5m (2016: R8,0m), respectively.

If the average portfolio cost ratio changed by 2,00% upwards or downwards then the fair value adjustment to the portfolio carrying 
value would have decreased by R4,8m (2016: R4,8m) and increased by R4,4m (2016: R4,4m), respectively.

2017 2016

R000’s Cost 

Accumulated
 impairment/
 amortisation

Carrying 
value Cost 

Accumulated
 impairment/
 amortisation

Carrying
 value

11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Group

Goodwill 23 910 (5 500) 18 410 23 910 (5 500) 18 410

Trademarks 58 940 (440) 58 500 58 940 (440) 58 500

Software development costs 1 561 (623) 938 1 561 (468) 1 093

84 411 (6 563) 77 848 84 411 (6 408) 78 003

The cash-generating units (“CGUs”) concerned are the “Eurolux” business operation and the two branches in Elektro Vroomen.  
The carrying amounts of intangible assets can be reconciled as follows:

R000’s

Carrying 
value at

the beginning 
of the year

Impairment/
amortisation

Carrying 
value at 
the end 

of the year

2017

Goodwill – Eurolux 18 410 – 18 410

Trademark – Eurolux brand 58 500 – 58 500

Software development costs 1 093 (155) 938

78 003 (155) 77 848

2016

Goodwill – Eurolux 18 410 – 18 410

Goodwill – Elektro Vroomen 5 500 (5 500) –

Trademark – Eurolux brand 58 500 – 58 500

Software development costs 1 249 (156) 1 093

83 659 (5 656) 78 003

Intangible assets have been valued as stated in Note 2.1 and 2.4.
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11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Elektro Vroomen goodwill was impaired in prior years as the CGU’s performances were inadequate to support the valuation. 

Impairment tests relating to the Eurolux trademark and goodwill were conducted as a single CGU. The Eurolux trademark is 
currently believed to have an indefinite useful life as the brand is increasing its market share and there is no foreseeable limit to 
the period that this brand will be generating economic benefits for the Group.

Management has calculated Eurolux’s cash flow and revenue projection over a five-year period. Estimated cash flows longer than 
five years may result in significant fluctuations due to the higher degree of uncertainty. Impairments are made when the aggregate 
carrying amount exceeds the aggregate recoverable amount of the CGU. The growth rates used do not exceed the long-term 
average growth rate for the industry or market in which Eurolux operates. Key assumptions used in the projection are: growth 
rate year 1 to 5 was 8% (2016:10%), a terminal growth rate 3% (2016: 4%) and a discount rate of 12,9% (2016: 11,6%). Management 
has based its assumptions on past experience and external sources of information, such as industry sector reports and market 
expectations. The discounted cash flows are most sensitive to changes in the discount rate. A 3,0% (2016: 3,63%) change in the 
discount rate would result in the Eurolux goodwill and trademark starting to be impaired. 

12.  INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE
Eurolux (Pty) Ltd is a 50% investor with Power Technologies Ltd in Crabtree Retail (Pty) Ltd, a venture with no initial investment 
and which commenced trading in July 2015. The joint venture is not material to the Group. It is incorporated in South Africa and 
distributes the Crabtree range of electrical products to the retail trade.

R000’s 2017 2016

Share of joint venture profits

Balance at the beginning of the year 1 041 –

Recognised in profit and loss during the year 2 192 1 041

Balance at the end of the year 3 233 1 041

Net assets of joint venture 6 466 2 082

Portion of ownership interest 50% 50%

Investment in joint venture 3 233 1 041

The joint venture has the same year-end as the Group and no dividends were received. As it is a private company, no quoted market 

prices are available for its shares. Loans to the joint venture are reported in Note 16 and transactions are reported in Note 23 

(Related parties). There are no material risks or commitments and there are no unusual restrictions on profit distribution or on the 

loans and advances other than normal solvency and liquidity tests. The Directors’ valuation is R3,2m (2016: R1,0m).

R000’s 2017 2016

13. DEFERRED TAXATION
Carrying value at the beginning of the year (34 512) (30 477)

Movements during the year attributable to:

Revaluation of land and buildings 382 (3 139)

Intangible assets – 350

Property, plant and equipment (322) (453)

Assessed loss – (1 693)

Impairments and staff accruals (222) 900

Carrying value at the end of the year (34 674) (34 512)

for the year ended 30 June 2017

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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R000’s Note(s) 2017 2016

13. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)
The carrying value comprises:

Revaluation of land and buildings (22 274) (22 656)

Intangible assets (16 380) (16 380) 

Property, plant and equipment (4 508) (4 186)

Impairments and staff accruals 8 488 8 710

(34 674) (34 512)

Deferred taxation liability (40 471) (41 469)

Deferred taxation asset 5 797 6 957

(34 674) (34 512)

Balance at 1 July (34 512) (30 477)

Current year charge 
 � Current year timing differences 7 1 293 805
 � CGT rate change (1 455) (1 471)

Included in other comprehensive income 8 – (1 759)

Balance at year-end (34 674) (34 512)

14. INVENTORY
Merchandise for resale 494 472 458 169

Allowance for impairment (22 480) (18 256)

471 992 439 913

Inventory has been valued as stated in Note 2.7

Impairment allowance

Allowance for impairment in respect of inventory can be reconciled as follows:

Opening carrying value (18 256) (16 954)

Increase in impairment allowance recognised in profit and loss 3 (4 224) (1 302)

Closing carrying value (22 480) (18 256)

The following factors were considered in determining the amount of the impairment of inventory:
 � Historic sales trends; and
 � Merchandise for resale on hand at reporting date which will likely not be sold or will be sold below cost.

R000’s 2017 2016

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Gross trade receivables 396 330 406 184

Other receivables 21 844 29 034

VAT refundable 2 293 269

420 467 435 487

Allowance for impairment (3 746) (3 712)

416 721 431 775
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R000’s 2017 2016

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The carrying value of trade and other receivables approximated their fair value due to the 

short-term nature of these instruments.

Impairment allowance

Allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables can be reconciled as follows:

Opening carrying value (3 712) (11 767)

Provision utilised 2 752 5 433

Reversal of provisions 960 6 334

New provisions raised (3 746) (3 712)

Closing carrying value (3 746) (3 712)

The following table illustrates the relationship between aged gross trade receivables and the impairment allowance:

R000’s

Gross trade
 receivables

 2017

Impairment
 allowance

 2017
Net 

2017

Gross trade
 receivables 

2016

Impairment
 allowance 

2016
Net

 2016

Not past due 316 811 (895) 315 916 345 074 (181) 344 893

Past due 1 to 30 days 37 542 (543) 36 999 32 763 (176) 32 587

Past due 31 to 60 days 10 464 (1 257) 9 207 6 787 (332) 6 455

Past due 61 days+ 31 513 (1 051) 30 462 21 560 (3 023) 18 537

396 330 (3 746) 392 584 406 184 (3 712) 402 472

The following factors were considered in determining the amount of the impairment of trade receivables: Financial difficulties, 
disputes, delinquent accounts and late payments without adequate repayment arrangements. Included in gross trade receivables 
are non-paying trade receivables for which claims are recoverable from trade credit insurance of R13,1m (2016: R16,6m) but 
against which no allowance for impairment is considered necessary.

The gross trade receivables at the reporting date by type of customer was spread across the following categories: Government/
parastatals/municipalities; Large industry/mining sector; Large contractors; Small contractors; Wholesalers; Export customers; and 
Retail and hardware chains. The Group’s diverse trade receivable balances with government, retail and hardware chains, parastatals, 
municipalities, large industry, the mining sector and large contractors reduces the Group’s exposure to credit risk.

Credit risk in respect of Group customers is reduced through the use of credit insurance. All receivables are insured except 
Government, Parastatals, Group accounts and accounts less than R25 000. Credit evaluations are performed, using the reports 
and tools of credit vetting agencies amongst other things, on new customers and existing customers requiring credit above their 
previously authorised levels. Listings of overdue customer balances are reviewed daily and any customers exceeding their credit 
must settle their overdue balances before any further credit is extended. Overdue trade receivables are handed over to insurers  
or attorneys for collection as soon as it becomes apparent that recovery may be uncertain. The credit risk in respect of other 
receivables is considered by the Directors to be minimal as it relates to transactions with major corporations within the Republic 
of South Africa.

The Group has a banking facility in terms of which certain subsidiaries have ceded their book debts in favour of Nedbank Ltd 
as security for this facility. Of this facility, R71,9m (2016: R33,4m) was utilised at 30 June 2017, R45,7m for guarantees (2016: 
R3,8m), R23,2m for letters of credit (2016: R26,6 m) and R3,0m for the “marked” percentage of forward exchange contracts (2016:  
R3,1m). Refer to Note 24.2 (Liquidity risk). Interest in levied on overdue accounts. While some personal securities are held for 
accounts receivable, reliance is placed on credit insurance as the primary credit protection basis.

for the year ended 30 June 2017

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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R000’s Note(s) 2017 2016

16. LOANS RECEIVABLE
Crabtree Retail (Pty) Ltd (joint venture) 2 956 7 289

The carrying value of loans receivable approximated their fair value due to the  

short-term nature of these instruments. These loans are unsecured, bear interest at 

rates linked to prime and have no fixed terms of repayment. They arise primarily for 

the purposes of trading. These loans are neither past due nor impaired.

17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Money market instruments 226 919 138 402

Bank balances and call deposits 79 723 104 867

306 642 243 269

Money market instruments are collective investments in various cash and cash 

equivalent investments with a 24-hour liquidity, mainly the NedGroup Core Income 

Fund R154,3m (2016: R131,6m) and Nedbank Deposit Notes R72,6m (2016: nil).  

Fair value approximates the carrying amount. R42,0m (2016: nil) of the NedGroup 

Core Income Fund investment has been pledged to Nedbank to secure the  

guarantee to purchase the Lords View property (refer to Note 25 on Guarantees).

18. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM
Authorised

1 000 000 000 ordinary shares of 0,01 cents each 100 100

Issued

235 000 000 ordinary shares of 0,01 cents 24 24

Share premium 116 150 116 150

116 174 116 174

The Directors are authorised, until the forthcoming AGM to issue and allot 5% of the 

unissued shares for any purpose and upon such terms and conditions as they deem fit.

19. RESERVES
Revaluation reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 71 002 70 302

Previous revaluations reversed on properties sold SOE (5 467) (1 749)

Revaluation for the year 8 6 400 5 679

Less deferred taxation thereon 8, 13 (1 455) (1 471)

Change in CGT inclusion rate 18 – (1 759)

Balance at the end of the year 70 480 71 002

The revaluation reserve is a reserve that represents the amount by which land and buildings have been revalued. There are no 

restrictions on the distribution of this reserve.
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R000’s Note(s) 2017 2016

20. DEFERRED LEASE PAYMENTS
Arising on the straight-lining of payments made under operating leases: 

Long-term portion 677 393

Current portion included in accounts payable 853 1 140

Net deferred lease payments 1 530 1 533

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade payables 276 039 263 393

Accruals 21 820 31 963

Leave pay and bonus accrual 10 759 14 203

Deferred lease payments 20 853 –

VAT payable 4 824 6 857

314 295 316 416

The carrying value of trade and other payables approximated their fair value due to 

the short-term nature of these instruments.

22. PUT OPTION LIABILITY
Balance at beginning of the year 84 510 75 314

Unwinding present value discount 6 4 333 7 720

Fair value adjustment 3 2 164 1 476

Balance at the end of the year 91 007 84 510

The put option liability is in respect of the right of the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary Eurolux (Pty) Ltd, to put their 
remaining shareholding to the Group at a multiple of 60% of the Group’s 120-day volume weighted average price earnings 
multiple (with a minimum of 4 and a maximum of 7,5) applied to the annual average of Eurolux’s last 36 months profit after tax, 
immediately preceding the Group’s most recent reporting period. For a maturity analysis and further disclosures refer to Note 24.5.  
The unwinding present value discount of this liability was discontinued in January 2017 when these options became “putable”.

23. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Group has a related-party relationship with non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, its joint ventures, directors and key 
management personnel. The nature of the business of the subsidiaries of the Group is set out in Note 28 and in the Directors’ 
report. The joint venture in Note 12 is also included as a related party. Details of material transactions with related parties are 
disclosed below and joint ventures in Note 5 (Interest received) and Note 16 (Loans receivable). Transactions are under terms no 
less favourable than those arranged with third parties.

Key management personnel
Key management personnel of the Group are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
controlling the activities of the Group, directly and indirectly, and include Directors of subsidiaries, Divisional Directors and 
Regional Managers. The key management personnel excludes the Directors of the holding company.

R000’s Note(s) 2017 2016

Rentals paid to companies controlled by key management in Eurolux* (13 214) (12 060)

Recoveries from joint venture 2 676 1 315

Interest charged to joint venture 5 500 867

* The Group has a “call option” to acquire the property held by Green Willows Properties (Pty) Ltd, a company controlled by certain key management of Eurolux 
for cash at externally appraised market value at date of exercise of the option.

for the year ended 30 June 2017
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23. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Directors’ emoluments

R000’s Salary

Performance

 bonus

Directors’ 

fees

Contributions 

to retirement

 funds

Other

 employment

 benefits Total

2017

Executive Directors

WR Neasham 2 799 286 – 280 233 3 598

GM Scrutton 1 671 154 – 330 188 2 343

Non-Executive Directors

AR Burke – – 467 – – 467

ST Downes – – 387 – – 387

JS Dixon – – 359 – – 359

RB Patmore – – 365 – – 365

4 470 440 1 578 610 421 7 519

2016

Executive Directors

WR Neasham 2 410 – – 241 247 2 898

GM Scrutton1 1 180 – – 207 159 1 546

Non-Executive Directors

AR Burke – – 436 – – 436

ST Downes – – 367 – – 367

JS Dixon2 – – 171 – – 171

G Pretorius3 – – 139 – – 139

RB Patmore – – 350 – – 350

3 590 – 1 463 448 406 5 907

 1. Appointed 1 October 2015. 
 2. Appointed 18 January 2016. 
 3. Retired 12 November 2015.

Remuneration paid to key management

R000’s 2017 2016

Short-term employment benefits 34 965 26 860

Contributions to retirement funds 2 983 2 651

Other employment benefits 3 279 3 547

41 227 33 058
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R000’s
Non-financial
 instruments

Loans and
 receivables

Liabilities 
at amortised

 cost

Liabilities at
 fair value

 through profit
 and loss

Carrying 
value

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Classification of financial instruments

Assets 

2017

Trade and other receivables 2 293 414 428 – – 416 721

Cash and cash equivalents – 306 642 – – 306 642

Loans receivable – 2 956 – – 2 956

2016

Trade and other receivables 269 431 506 – – 431 775

Cash and cash equivalents – 243 269 – – 243 269

Loans receivable – 7 289 – – 7 289

Liabilities

2017

Put option liability – – – 91 007 91 007

Trade and other payables 17 075 – 297 860 – 314 925

Deferred lease payments 677 – – – 677

2016

Put option liability – – – 84 510 84 510

Trade and other payables 21 060 – 295 356 – 316 416

Deferred lease payments 1 140 – – – 1 140

The Group’s operations expose it to a number of financial instrument risks, namely credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign exchange 
risks. The Group has a financial risk management process in place to protect against and minimise the potential effects of these 
financial risks. This note presents information regarding the exposure to each of these risks and processes for managing them.

24.1 Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a customer or counter-party to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations and arises principally from the Group’s gross trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents held at  
banking institutions.

The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties and it is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to 
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, trade receivable balances are monitored on 
an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. The Group also believes that it has 
no significant exposure to credit risk due to the large number of customers comprising the Group’s customer base and their 
dispersion across different industries and geographical areas. Credit risk in respect of ARB Electrical Wholesalers, Eurolux 
and CED is reduced as they maintain credit insurance in respect of all their customers except government, parastatals and 
small accounts under R25 000. The maximum exposure is the carrying amount as disclosed in Note 15 (other than VAT 
recoverable because it not a financial instrument).

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises 
from default of the counter-party, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.

With respect to credit risk arising from loans to related parties, the Group’s exposure to credit risk is mitigated by the fact 
that all related parties are solvent and liquid and have the ability to raise capital from outside the Group to repay the loans.

for the year ended 30 June 2017
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

24.1 Credit risk (continued)

To limit this exposure, the Group’s cash is placed only with reputable financial institutions of high credit standing and 

limits its exposure to A rated (or better) counter-parties.

24.2 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Group ensures, as far as possible, that it has sufficient liquidity available to meet its liabilities as and when they 

fall due. Daily and monthly cash flow requirements are monitored to ensure sufficient cash is available on demand or 

that access to facilities is available to meet expected operational expenses. Any surplus cash is appropriately invested.  

The Group maintains a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank facilities and  

inter-company funding.

In addition, the subsidiaries have primary and secondary general banking facilities of R148,0m (2016: R155,0m) and R80,0m 

(2016: R73,0m) respectively available to finance foreign trade requirements. At the year-end R45,7m (2016: R0,6m) of 

general banking facilities had been used, primarily as a bank guarantee for the Lords View property purchase, which was 

also secured by a cession of money market instruments and was matured in early July 2017 when the property was paid 

for. At year-end, R26,2m (2016: R33,0m) of the trade facilities had been used. The Group has complied with all bank facility 

covenants during the year, predominantly related to times debtors’ cover (two times trade debtors less than 90 days old and 

excluding inter-company accounts), negative pledge over assets and incurring of new debt.

In terms of the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation (“MOI”), there is no limit on the Group’s authority to raise interest-

bearing debt.

24.3 Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in the interest rate will affect the Group’s income or value of its financial 

instruments, namely its cash and cash equivalents and interest-bearing borrowings.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the cash and cash equivalents, with 

a variable interest rate. As part of the process of managing the Group’s interest rate risk, interest rate characteristics of 

surplus cash investments are positioned according to expected movement in the interest rate. Full details of interest rates 

relating to loans receivable are detailed in Note 16.

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in the interest rates.

Surplus cash and cash equivalents exposed to interest rate risk are placed with institutions and facilities which yield the 

highest rate of return, but which are still within acceptable risk parameters. The cash equivalent balances vary during the 

month and during the year in line with business cycles. The sensitivity analysis below is based on the year-end cash and 

loans receivable balance.

Sensitivity analysis

R000’s 2017 2016

Loans receivable 

Increase of 100 basis points would result in an improvement of profit before tax of 29 73

Decrease of 200 basis points would result in a reduction of profit before tax of (59) (145)

Cash and cash equivalents 

Increase of 100 basis points would result in an improvement of profit before tax of 3 066 2 433

Decrease of 200 basis points would result in a reduction of profit before tax of (6 133) (4 866)
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

24.4 Foreign exchange risk
ARB Global, CED and ARB Electrical counter their exposure to foreign currency risk against stronger currencies by entering 

into forward exchange contracts where there is a pre-determined selling price. Such exposure arises from purchases in 

currencies other than in South African Rand. It is the Group’s policy to make use of forward exchange contracts to eliminate 

the currency exposure on any individual transaction for which the payment is anticipated to be more than one month after 

the Group has entered into a firm commitment for a purchase. The Group does not formally hedge its foreign currency risk.

Forward exchange contracts which relate to future commitments at year-end were:

Currency 000’s
Average 

rate Matures

US$ – 2017 1 731 13,48 1 to 4 months

US$ – 2016 1 547 15,41 1 to 4 months

EUR – 2017 124 15,41 1 month

EUR –2016 130 17,30 1 month

The Group has the following exposures in foreign currencies:

2017 2016

000’s US$ Euro US$ Euro

Year-end spot rates: 13,04 16,83 14,68 16,26

Foreign denominated receivables 694 367 1 388 444

Foreign denominated cash and equivalents 729 574 353 342

Foreign denominated payables (2 563) (417) (1 466) (1)

On balance sheet exposures (1 140) 524 275 785

Open purchase orders (3 342) (51) (5 064) (135)

Open sales orders 439 – 995 –

Open normal letters of credit (not accrued) (848) – (839) (130)

Open forward exchange contracts (buy) 1 731 248 1 547 130

Total exchange exposure (3 160) 721 (3 086) 650

Foreign exchange – sensitivity analysis R000’s R000’s R000’s R000’s

If the Rand weakened by 10%, it would result in a 

decrease of profit before tax of: (4 121) 1 213 (4 530) 1 057

If the Rand strengthened by 10, it would result in an 

increase of profit before tax of: 8 242 (2 426) 4 530 (1 057)

24.5 Financial liabilities – maturity analysis
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments 

and the Directors’ view on the timing of the payment of the put option liability.

for the year ended 30 June 2017
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R000’s 2017 2016

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

24.5 Financial liabilities – maturity analysis (continued)

Payable in 1 to 5 years

Put option liability* 91 007 88 736

Payable in 1 to 12 months

Trade and other payables 297 860 295 356

*  The put options are already exercisable at the option of the non-controlling interests and payable six months after notice has been given. While 
the Group has no control over when the options will be exercised and they are, therefore, reported as current liabilities, the Directors are of the 
opinion, however, that 40% of the value of the put option liability will be exercised in two to four years and the balance in eight to 12 years’ time.

24.6 Capital management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that 

it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and to provide an adequate return 

to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group changes the capital structure and makes adjustments 

to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain 

or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to 

shareholders, issue new shares, repurchase shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the year. The Group is not subject to any 

externally imposed capital requirements. The banking facilities have a maximum of two times “good debtors” covenant.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided 

by capital. Net debt is calculated as total debt (#) (as shown in the statement of financial position) excluding the put option 

liability and less cash and cash equivalents.

Capital comprises all components of equity. The Group meets the JSE capital requirements and there are no other 

externally imposed capital requirements

The debt to adjusted capital ratio at 30 June was as follows:

R000’s 2017 2016

Total debt (#) 321 283 316 416

Cash and cash equivalents (306 642) (243 269)

Net debt 14 641 73 147

Total equity 1 064 553 986 782

Debt to adjusted capital ratio 0,01:1 0,07:1

These ratios are within target. The increase in the Group’s debt to capital ratio during 2017 resulted mainly funds generated 

from operating activities, offset by a mainly inflationary increase in working capital.
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
24.7 Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are categorised in its entirety 

into the following three levels of the fair value hierarchy based on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the 

fair value measurement in its entirety:

R000’s
Carrying 

value
Fair value

level 3

At 
amortised 

cost

2017

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables 416 721 – 414 428

Trade and other receivables 414 428 – 414 428

Non-financial instruments 2 293 – –

Loans receivable 2 956 – 2 956

Cash and cash equivalents 306 642 – 306 642

726 319 – 724 026

Financial liabilities

Put option liability 91 007 91 007 –

Trade and other payables 314 295 – 297 859

Trade and other payables 297 859 – 297 859

Non-financial instruments 16 436 – –

Deferred lease payments 677 – –

405 979 91 007 297 859

2016

Financial assets

Deferred lease income

Trade and other receivables 431 775 – 431 506

Trade and other receivables 431 506 – 431 506

Non-financial instruments 269 – –

Loans receivable 7 289 – 7 289

Cash and cash equivalents 243 269 – 243 269

682 332 – 682 064

Financial liabilities

Put option liability 84 510 84 510 –

Trade and other payables 316 416 – 295 356

Trade and other payables 295 356 – 295 356

Non-financial instruments 21 060 – –

Deferred lease payments 1 140 – –

402 066 84 510 295 356

for the year ended 30 June 2017
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
24.7 Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments (continued)

There have been no transfers between levels. The fair value of the put option financial liability disclosed under level 3 
has been determined in accordance with the predetermined contractual valuation method, disclosed in Note 22. In the 
contractual valuation formula the only input which is unobservable from market data is Eurolux’s historic profits. 

25. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
25.1 Contingencies

During December 2015 the Group received a summons from a major listed construction company, as third respondent 
(after their insurance company and insurance broker), claiming R76,4m “as a result of the incorrect cable being procured 
or incorrect cables being installed incorrectly”. The Group is confident that it supplied and delivered the cable specified on 
their order. Attorneys have been appointed to defend the matter and no provision has been made as the Directors believe 
that there is no justification for this claim.

25.2 Commitments
The Group has capital commitments of:

2017 2016

R000’s Contracted
Not 

contracted Contracted 
Not 

contracted

Land and buildings 52 642 64 500

Motor vehicles – – 1 446 –

Furniture and fittings 806 – 1 862 –

 53 448 64 500 3 308 –

25.3 Operating lease commitments 
The Group has entered into 13 (2016: 12) operating lease agreements in respect of fixed property used for warehousing, 
offices and branch trading facilities. These leases generally have an initial three to five-year lease term with options to renew 
at market-related rentals. Annual escalations from 6% to 10% are common to all leases. No leases contain contingent rent 
provisions or covenants. Future maximum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

R000’s
Up to 1 

year
2 to 5 
years

6 to 10 
years Total 

2017 44 090 76 527 – 120 617

2016 20 635 68 748 1 996 91 379

25.4 Bank guarantees
A limited cross guarantee, incorporating a cession of loan funds has been given by each of ARB Holdings Ltd, ARB Electrical 
Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd, Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd, Industrial Cable Supplies (Pty) Ltd and ARB Global (Pty) Ltd in favour of 
Nedbank for general banking and trade facilities granted to ARB Electrical Division of R48,0m (2016: R48,0m).

A limited guarantee, incorporating a cession of loan funds has been given in favour of Nedbank for general banking and 
trade facilities granted to Eurolux (Pty) Ltd of R55,0m (2016: R55,0m).

Guarantees issued by Nedbank Ltd on behalf of the Group amounted to R45,7m (2016: R0,6m). R42,0m (2016: Rnil) of these 
guarantees are for the procurement of the land where the Electrical Division distribution centre is to be built. This payment 
was made in July 2017 and this guarantee closed. This guarantee was secured by a pledge of the NedGroup Investment 
(included under “cash and cash equivalents”). Other than these guarantees, the general banking facilities within the Group 
are unutilised at 30 June 2017 and 2016. Trade facilities have been utilised for letters of credit, forward exchange contracts 
and similar trade products to the extent of R26,2m (2016: R29,8m).
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26. SEGMENT REPORT
IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reporting on operating divisions of the Group that 

are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker in order to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their 

performance. The Group’s reportable segments were identified primarily based on the difference in products or services offered 

by the different segments rather than geographical area or regulatory environments in which they operate.

Based on management’s monthly significant reporting segments, the Segment Report has been prepared by reportable operating 

segment. As a result, the primary reporting format is by business segments with no secondary reporting format.

The Group has three operating segments from which it derives its revenue. The activities associated with each segment are noted below:

Electrical – Distributors of electrical products across three main categories: power and instrumentation cable, overhead line 

equipment and conductors, and low voltage products.

Lighting – Distributors of energy saving LED and fluorescent lamps, light fittings and electrical accessories.

Corporate – Property holding and specialist IT hardware, software services and support.

The following table presents revenue and profit information and certain asset and liability information regarding the Group’s 

business segments for the years ended 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2017 respectively: 

R000’s Electrical Lighting Corporate

Inter-
company

 elimination
 and 

reallocation Total

2017

Segment revenue 1 996 374 510 802 38 379 (66 136) 2 479 419

Inter-segment revenue (790) (29 290) (36 056) 66 136 –

Sales to external customers 1 995 584 481 512 2 323 – 2 479 419

Depreciation and amortisation (10 897) (1 852) (755) (325) (13 828)

Equity accounted income – 2 192 – – 2 192

Profit before interest and tax 134 199 57 822 29 723 (7 289) 214 455

Investment income – – 67 200 (67 200) –

Interest received 21 388 543 27 450 (23 383) 25 998

Interest paid (1 312) (10 127) (11 946) 19 052 (4 333)

Profit before taxation 154 275 48 238 112 427 (78 820) 236 120

Taxation (42 556) (12 348) (8 282) (1 468) (64 654)

Profit for the year 111 719 35 890 104 145 (80 288) 171 466

Segment assets 976 043 284 690 603 927 (342 091) 1 522 569

Segment liabilities 298 071 114 277 244 459 (204 046) 452 761

Entity-wide disclosure

Sales to sub-Saharan customers 112 804 32 883 – – 145 687

for the year ended 30 June 2017
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R000’s Electrical Lighting Corporate

Inter-
company

 elimination
 and 

reallocation Total

26. SEGMENT REPORT (continued)
2016

Segment revenue 2 006 038 506 954 39 311 (62 512) 2 489 791

Inter-segment revenue (223) (25 509) (36 780) 62 512 –

Sales to external customers 2 005 815 481 445 2 531 – 2 489 791

Depreciation and amortisation (8 566) (1 944) (1 007) – (11 517)

Equity accounted income – 1 041 – – 1 041

Operating profit 140 491 59 946 26 854 (5 076) 222 215

Impairment of goodwill (5 500) – – – (5 500)

Net profit before interest and tax 134 991 59 946 26 854 (5 076) 216 715

Investment income – – 58 105 (58 105) –

Interest received 17 749 – 19 250 (17 368) 19 631

Interest paid – (9 155) (8 213) 9 648 (7 720)

Profit before taxation 152 740 50 791 95 996 (70 901) 228 626

Taxation (43 583) (13 810) (11 062) – (68 455)

Profit for the year 109 157 36 981 84 934 (70 901) 160 171

Segment assets 931 305 316 836 539 187 (353 768) 1 433 560

Segment liabilities 290 553 170 318 209 733 (223 826) 446 778

Entity-wide disclosure

Sales to sub-Saharan customers 83 554 23 751 – – 107 305

Geographical information

All trading activities and non-current assets of the segments are domiciled in South Africa. No single customer contributes more 

than 10% of the Group’s revenue. 

R000’s 2017 2016

27. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW NOTES
27.1 Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Profit for the year 171 466 160 171

Adjusted for items disclosed later in the statement of cash flow
 � Interest received (25 998) (19 631)
 � Interest paid 4 333 7 720
 � Income tax 64 654 68 455

Adjusted for non-cash transactions
 � Depreciation 13 673 11 361
 � Amortisation of intangibles 155 156
 � Change of put option liability fair value 2 164 1 476
 � Equity income from joint venture (2 192) (1 041)
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R000’s 2017 2016

27. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW NOTES (continued)

27.1 Operating cash flow before working capital changes (continued)
 � (Profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (3 732) 1 022

 � Impairment of property, plant and equipment 2 500 –
 � Operating lease smoothing (856) 869
 � Impairment of goodwill – 5 500

226 167 236 058

27.2 Taxation paid
Taxation overpaid at the beginning of the year – 200

Taxation owing at the beginning of the year (2 850) (2 492)

Current year tax charge (66 400) (67 650)

Current year prior period adjustment 453 –

Taxation owing at year-end 6 311 2 850

Taxation paid (62 486) (67 092)

27.3 Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment
Disposals of property, plant and equipment 12 054 10 620

Profit on disposal included in profit and loss 3 732 (1 022)

15 786 9 598

Shares issued

Ownership Number of shares

R000’s % 2017 2016

28. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd (Local empowered electrical wholesaler) 74 10 000 10 000

Eurolux (Pty) Ltd (Lighting wholesaler) 60 1 900 1 900

ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd (IT system developer and provider) 100 100 100

ARB Global (Pty) Ltd (Global electrical wholesaler) 100 100 100

CED – Consolidated Electrical Distributor (Pty) Ltd (Chint distributor) 100 120 120

Company’s share of the aggregate profits after tax of subsidiaries 124 993 112 101

for the year ended 30 June 2017
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28. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 
All investments are measured at cost in the Company’s separate financial statements. All subsidiaries are incorporated in the 

Republic of South Africa. Set out below is the summarised information in respect of each subsidiary with material non-controlling 

interest. As disclosed in Note 22, the Eurolux minority shareholders hold a “put option” over their shares in the Company.  

The Company has a “call option” over the shares held by the Eurolux minorities, but only in the event that a minority’s employment 

is terminated. The “call option” value will be determined using the same method as the “put option” disclosed in Note 22.  

The summarised information below is presented before inter-company eliminations and adjustments on consolidation:

ARB Electrical  

Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd

R000’s 2017 2016

% of interest and voting rights held by non-controlling interest 26% 26%

Profit for the year allocated to non-controlling interest 24 874 24 594

Accumulated non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting period 170 868 161 594

Dividend paid to non-controlling interest (15 600) (15 600)

Total revenue 1 876 490 1 930 086

Profit for the year 95 661 94 537

Total assets 898 112 882 704

Total liabilities 240 929 261 183

Net cash flow from operating activities (5 083) 52 070

Net cash flow from investing activities (41 603) (133 276)

Net cash flow from financing activities (4 915) (148 598)

29. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE
The only material subsequent events are the declaration of the dividend for the 2017 financial year (referred to in Note 9.3 above), 

the purchase and payment of R36,2m for the Lords View property in Gauteng (referred to in Note 26.2 above) which will be 

developed as a larger branch and a distribution centre for the region and the cancellation of the related property purchase price 

guarantees (referred to in Note 25 above).
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Shareholder spread
Number of

 shareholdings
 % of total

 shareholdings
Shares 

held
%

held

1 – 1 000 shares 303 31,96 121 017 0,05

1 001 – 10 000 shares 387 40,82 1 572 129 0,67

10 001 – 100 000 shares 159 16,77 5 701 496 2,43

100 001 – 1 000 000 shares 68 7,17 24 644 378 10,49

1 000 001 shares and over 31 3,27 202 960 980 86,37

Total 948 100,00 235 000 000 100,00

Distribution of shareholders

Trusts 52 5,49 113 687 347 48,38

Retirement, hedge and collective funds 77 8,12 45 416 859 19,33

Retail shareholders 746 78,69 43 556 513 18,53

Custodians and nominees 10 1,05 17 029 355 7,25

Other 63 6,65 15 309 926 6,51

Total 948 100,00 235 000 000 100,00

Shareholder type

Non-public shareholders* 13 1,37 137 216 009 58,39

Directors and associates (direct interest) 6 0,63 24 645 716 10,49

Directors and associates (indirect interest) 7 0,74 112 570 293 47,90

Public shareholders 935 98,63 97 783 991 41,61

Total 948 100,00 235 000 000 100,00

Beneficial shareholders with a holding greater than 3% of  

the shares in issue:

The Burke Investment Trust 99 351 788 42,28

Mr Alan Burke 18 523 077 7,88

The Alan Burke Trust 9 503 505 4,04

Old Mutual Group 7 329 170 3,12

Total 134 707 540 57,32

* Includes key management and Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries that resigned during the year.

No change notice

There were no shares issued and no changes in beneficial shareholder with a holding greater than 3% between the year-end and the 

date of this report.

SHAREHOLDER ANALYSIS
as at 30 June 2017
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Listed on JSE 20 November 2007

Announcement of year-end results 18 August 2017

Last day to register to receive dividend 12 September 2017

Record date in respect of dividend 15 September 2017

Dividend payment date 18 September 2017

Integrated Report posted 28 September 2017

AGM 8 November 2017 

Announcement of half year interim results 16 February 2018

Financial year-end 30 June 2018

Announcement of year-end results 13 August 2018

SHAREHOLDERS’ DIARY
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ARB HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Registration number: 1986/002975/06)

Share code: ARH

ISIN: ZAE000109435

(“ARB” or “the Company”)

NOTICE
Notice is hereby given to the shareholders of ARB that the AGM of ARB will be held at the Company’s registered office located at 

10 Mack Road, Prospecton, Durban, 4110 on 8 November 2017 at 10:00 to (i) deal with such business as may lawfully be dealt with at 

the meeting, (ii) the presentation of the Directors’ report, the annual financial statements, the Audit Committee Report and the Social 

and Ethics Committee Report of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2017 (contained in the Integrated Report of the Company for 

the same period, of which this notice forms a part (“the Integrated Report”) and (iii) consider and, if deemed fit, to pass, with or without 

modification, the ordinary and special resolutions set out hereunder in the manner required by the Companies Act, 2008, as amended 

(“the Companies Act”), as read with the Listings Requirements of the JSE Ltd (“JSE”).

Kindly note that meeting participants (including shareholders and proxies) are required in terms of section 63(1) of the Companies 

Act to provide reasonably satisfactory identification before being entitled to attend or participate in a shareholders’ meeting. Forms 

of identification include valid identity documents, driver’s licences and passports.

RECORD DATES, VOTING AND PROXIES
Please take note of the following important dates with regard to the AGM:

Record date for the purposes of receiving this notice Friday, 22 September 2017

Distribution of the Integrated Report Thursday, 28 September 2017

Last day to trade for voting purposes Tuesday, 31 October 2017

Record date for voting purposes Friday, 3 November 2017

Last day to lodge proxy form (by 13:00) Wednesday, 8 November 2017*

AGM to be held at 10:00 Wednesday, 8 November 2017

Results of AGM published on SENS Thursday, 9 November 2017

*  Dematerialised shareholders who have elected own-name registration in the sub-register through a Central Securities Depository Participant (“CSDP”) and who 
are unable to attend but wish to vote at the AGM, should complete and return the attached form of proxy and lodge it with the transfer secretaries of the Company 
at least 48 hours prior to the AGM. If this deadline is not met, the shareholder or proxy may bring it to the meeting, but will be required to provide proof (sufficient 
to the chairman of the meeting) of the validity of the proxy and the identification of the bearer.

A shareholder of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint one or more proxies (who need not be 

a shareholder of the Company) to attend, vote and speak in his/her stead. On a show of hands, every shareholder of the Company 

present in person or represented by proxy shall have one vote only. On a poll, every shareholder of the Company present in person or 

represented by proxy shall have one vote for every ordinary share held in the Company by such shareholder. 

Shareholders who have dematerialised their shares through a CSDP or broker, other than through own-name registration and who wish 

to attend the AGM must instruct their CSDP or broker to issue them with the necessary written authority to attend. If such shareholders 

are unable to attend but wish to vote at the AGM they should provide their CSDP or broker with their voting instructions in terms of the 

agreement entered into between that shareholder and his/her CSDP or broker.

Forms of proxy may also be obtained on request from the Company’s transfer secretaries. The completed forms of proxy must be 

deposited at, posted or faxed to the transfer secretaries at the address below, to be received at least 48 hours prior to the AGM.  

Any shareholder who completes and lodges a form of proxy will nevertheless be entitled to attend and vote in person at the AGM should 

the shareholder subsequently decide to do so.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
1. Ordinary resolution 1: Presentation of annual financial statements

“RESOLVED that the annual financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2017, including the Directors’ report, 

the Auditor’s report, the Audit Committee’s Report and the Social and Ethics Committee report, be and are hereby received.”

2. Ordinary resolution 2: General authority to issue shares for cash
“RESOLVED that, subject to not less than 75% of the votes of those shareholders present in person or by proxy and entitled to 

vote being cast in favour of this resolution, the Directors be and are hereby authorised by way of a general authority to issue any 

authorised but unissued ordinary shares or securities convertible into shares for cash or grant any options for the subscription 

of authorised but unissued ordinary shares for cash, at such times, at such prices and for such purposes as they may determine, 

at their discretion, provided that any such general authority shall be valid only until the next AGM of the Company or 15 months 

from the date of the passing of this resolution, whichever is the earlier and subject to the requirements of the Company’s MOI, as 

amended or substituted, the Companies Act and the Listings Requirements of the JSE, including the following limitations:
 � the issue of the shares must be made to persons qualifying as public shareholders as defined in the Listings Requirements of 

the JSE and not to related parties;
 � the shares which are the subject of the issue for cash must be of a class already in issue, or where this is not the case, must be 

limited to such shares or rights that are convertible into a class of shares already in issue;
 � the number of shares issued for cash shall not in the aggregate during the period of this authority exceed 11 750 000 ordinary 

shares, being 5% of all the shares in the Company’s issued ordinary share capital as at the date of this notice, excluding 

treasury shares. Any equity securities issued under this authority during the period of its validity shall be deducted from the 

above number of ordinary shares and the authority shall be adjusted accordingly to represent the same allocation ratio in the 

event of a sub-division or consolidation of equity securities during such period;
 � the maximum discount at which such ordinary shares may be issued is 10% of the weighted average price at which such 

ordinary shares have traded on the JSE, as determined over the 30 business days immediately preceding the date that the price 

of the issue is determined or agreed to by the Directors of the Company and the party subscribing for the shares; and
 � after the Company has issued shares for cash which represent, on a cumulative basis within the period of this authority, 5% 

of the number of shares in issue prior to that issue, the Company shall publish an announcement containing full details of the 

issue (including the number of shares issued, the average discount to the weighted average traded price of the shares over the 

30 business days prior to the date that the issue is agreed in writing between the Company and the party/ies subscribing for the 

securities and in respect of the issue of option and convertible securities, the effect of the issue on the statement of financial 

position, net asset value per share, net tangible asset value per share, the statement of comprehensive income, earnings per 

share, headline earnings per share and, if applicable, diluted earnings and headline earnings per share or in respect of any 

other issue of shares pursuant to this authority, an explanation, including supporting information (if any), of the intended use of 

the funds, or any other announcements that may be required in such regard in terms of the Listings Requirements of the JSE 

as applicable from time to time.”

3. Ordinary resolution 3: Placing unissued shares under the control of the Directors
“RESOLVED that the authorised but unissued ordinary shares in the capital of the Company be and are hereby placed under the 

control and authority of the Directors of the Company and that the Directors be and are hereby authorised, by way of a general 

authority, to issue and otherwise dispose of such unissued ordinary shares at their discretion, subject always to:
 � ordinary resolution 2, to the extent applicable, in the case of an issue of shares for cash;
 � the provisions of the Companies Act, the Company’s MOI, as amended or substituted, and the Listings Requirements of the 

JSE; and
 � such Directors’ authority being limited to a maximum number of unissued ordinary shares equal to 5% of the number of 

ordinary shares in issue from time to time, provided that this limitation will not apply to the issue of ordinary shares in terms of 

any share incentive scheme and accordingly:
 — in calculating the number of ordinary shares issued in any financial year for purposes of determining whether the 

aforementioned 5% threshold has been reached, any ordinary shares issued in terms of the rules of any share incentive 

scheme shall not be included in the calculation; and
 — the number of ordinary shares which Directors are authorised to issue in terms of any share incentive scheme shall not be 

subject to limitation other than in terms of the rules applicable to any such scheme.”

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (continued)
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4. Ordinary resolution 4: Re-election of retiring Director
“RESOLVED that Simon Downes, who retires by rotation in terms of the Company’s MOI, as amended or substituted, and who, 
being eligible, offers himself for re-election, be and is hereby re-elected as a Director of the Company.” A brief curriculum vitae of 
Simon Downes is set out on page 17 of the Integrated Report of which this notice forms part.

5. Ordinary resolution 5: Election of Audit Committee members
Subject to the passing of ordinary resolution 4 above:
“RESOLVED that shareholders elect, each by way of a separate vote, the following Non-Executive Directors as members of the 
Audit Committee, with effect from the end of this AGM:

 � James Dixon (Chairman) – Independent Non-Executive Director; 
 � Simon Downes – Independent Non-Executive Director; and
 � Ralph Patmore – Independent Non-Executive Director.

Brief curriculum vitae of these Independent Non-Executive Directors offering themselves for re-election as members of the Audit 
Committee are set out on pages 16 and 17 of the Integrated Report of which this notice forms part.

6. Ordinary resolution 6: Reappointment of Auditor and fixing of remuneration
“RESOLVED that the Audit Committee be and is hereby authorised to reappoint PKF Durban as the Auditor of the Company 
and its subsidiaries and RC Boulle being a partner of PKF Durban, as the individual designated Auditor, until the conclusion 
of the Company’s next AGM and, in addition, the Audit Committee be and is hereby authorised to determine and pay the 
Auditor’s remuneration.”

7. Ordinary resolution 7: Signature of documents
“RESOLVED that any Director of the Company or the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorised to settle the terms of and 
sign all such documentation and do all such things as may be necessary for or incidental to the implementation of the ordinary 
and special resolutions which are passed by the shareholders.“

8. Ordinary resolution 8: Endorsement of ARB remuneration policy (non-binding advisory vote)
“RESOLVED that shareholders endorse, by way of a non-binding advisory vote, the Company’s remuneration policy as outlined in 
the Remuneration Committee Report set out on pages 16 and 17 of the Integrated Report of which this notice forms part.”

Save for ordinary resolution 2, a 50% majority of votes cast by those shareholders present or represented and voting at the AGM is 
required for the ordinary resolutions as set out in this notice to be adopted.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS
1. Special resolution 1: General authority to repurchase Company shares

“RESOLVED that the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised, by way of a general authority, to repurchase on behalf 
of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries, ordinary shares issued by the Company, in accordance with the Companies Act, and 
in particular, subject to section 48(8)(b) thereof, the Company’s MOI, as amended or substituted, and the Listings Requirements 
of the JSE, and provided that:

 � any such acquisition of ordinary shares shall be effected through the order book operated by the JSE trading system and done 
without any prior understanding or arrangement between the Company and the counter-party;

 � this general authority shall only be valid until the Company’s next AGM, provided that it shall not extend beyond 15 months from 
the date of the passing of this special resolution;

 � an announcement setting out such details as may be required in terms of the Listings Requirements of the JSE will be published 
on SENS once the Company or any of its subsidiaries has acquired ordinary shares constituting, on a cumulative basis, 3% of 
the initial number of ordinary shares in issue as at the time the general authority was granted and for each 3% in aggregate of 
the initial number of shares acquired thereafter; 

 � in terms of the general authority, the acquisition of ordinary shares in any one financial year may not exceed, in aggregate, 
20% of the Company’s issued share capital of that class, at the time the approval is granted, and the acquisition of shares by 
a subsidiary of the Company may not exceed, in aggregate, 10% of the number of issued shares of the Company of that class;

 � in determining the price at which the Company’s ordinary shares are acquired by the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries 
in terms of this general authority, the maximum premium at which such ordinary shares may be acquired will be 10% of the 
weighted average market price at which such ordinary shares are traded on the JSE, as determined over the five business days 

immediately preceding the date of the acquisition of such ordinary shares by the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries;
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (continued)

 � a resolution shall be passed by the Board of Directors that it has authorised the repurchase, that the Company and its 
subsidiaries have passed the solvency and liquidity tests as required by section 46 of the Companies Act and that, since the test 
was performed, there have been no material changes to the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries;

 � the Company will only appoint one agent to effect any repurchase(s) on its behalf; and
 � the Company and/or its subsidiaries will not acquire the Company’s shares during a prohibited period as defined in paragraph 

3.67 of the Listings Requirements of the JSE unless they have in place a repurchase programme where the dates and quantities 
of securities to be traded during the relevant period are fixed (not subject to any variation) and has been submitted to the JSE 
in writing prior to the commencement of the prohibited period.”

Reason for and effect of special resolution 1 (including statement of the Board of Directors’ intention regarding the utilisation 

of the authority sought)
The reason for and effect of special resolution 1 is to grant the Directors of the Company a general authority, up to and including 
the date of the next AGM of the Company or the expiration of 15 months from the date of the passing of this special resolution, 
whichever is the earlier date, for the acquisition by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of shares issued by the Company. 

A repurchase of shares is not contemplated at the date of this notice; however, the Directors believe it to be in the interests of 
the Company that shareholders grant a general authority to provide the Board with the flexibility to facilitate the repurchase of 
Company shares as and when the Board considers it appropriate.

Please refer to the additional disclosure of information contained elsewhere in this notice required in terms of the Listings 
Requirements of the JSE.

2. Special resolution 2: Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2018
“RESOLVED that the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors, in the form of fees for their services as Directors, for the year 
ended 30 June 2017 as set out below, be and is hereby approved as contemplated in section 66(9) of the Companies Act:
Chairman of the Board Retainer of R305 400 per annum (2016: R288 120)
 R29 650 per Board meeting chaired (2016: R27 960)
 R11 850 per sub-committee meeting attended (2016: R11 180) 
Lead Independent Director Retainer of R203 250 per annum (2016: R191 712)
 R11 850 per Board or sub-committee meeting attended (2016: R11 180)
Non-Executive Director Retainer of R179 500 per annum (2016: R169 344)
 R11 850 per Board or sub-committee meeting attended (2016: R11 180)
Sub-committee Chairman R17 780 per sub-committee meeting chaired (2016: R16 775)

Reason for and effect of special resolution 2
The reason for and effect of special resolution 2 is to approve the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors in accordance with 
the requirements of the Companies Act and the Company’s MOI.

3. Special resolution 3: Financial assistance to related or inter-related companies and corporations
“RESOLVED that the Company be and is hereby authorised, in terms of a general authority contemplated in section 45(3)(a)(ii) 
of the Companies Act for a period of two years from the date of this resolution, to provide direct or indirect financial assistance 
as defined in section 45(1) of the Companies Act to a related or inter-related company or corporation, subject to the Board of 
Directors of the Company being satisfied that:
(a)  pursuant to section 45(3)(b)(i) of the Companies Act, immediately after providing such financial assistance, the Company 

would satisfy the solvency and liquidity test (as contemplated in section 4(1) of the Companies Act);
(b)  pursuant to section 45(3)(b)(ii) of the Companies Act, the terms under which such financial assistance is proposed to be given 

are fair and reasonable to the Company; and
(c)  any conditions or restrictions with respect to the granting of such financial assistance set out in the Company’s MOI and/or 

the Listings Requirements of the JSE have been complied with.”

Reason for and effect of special resolution 3
The reason for and effect of special resolution 3 is to provide the Directors with an authority to provide financial assistance to 
related or inter-related companies and corporations in accordance with section 45 of the Companies Act.

A 75% majority of votes cast by those shareholders present or represented and voting at the AGM is required for each of the special 
resolutions as set out in this notice to be adopted.
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ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE REQUIRED IN TERMS OF THE LISTINGS REQUIREMENTS OF THE JSE
The following additional information, some of which might appear elsewhere in the Integrated Report of which this notice forms part, is 
provided in terms of the Listings Requirements of the JSE for purposes of considering special resolution 1:

 � Major shareholders (refer to page 91 of this Integrated Report); and
 � Share capital of the Company (refer to page 77 of this Integrated Report).

Repurchase undertaking
The Directors of the Company confirm they are satisfied, after considering the effect of the maximum repurchase contemplated by 
special resolution 1, that for a period of 12 months after the date of notice of this AGM:

 � The Company and the subsidiaries of the Company (“the Group”) will be able to repay their debts as such debts become due in the 
ordinary course of business;

 � The assets of the Company and Group, fairly valued in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and on a basis 
consistent with the previous financial year, will exceed the liabilities of the Company and Group;

 � The Company and the Group will have adequate share capital and reserves for ordinary business purposes; and
 � The Company and the Group will have sufficient working capital for ordinary business purposes.

Directors’ responsibility statement
The Directors, whose names are given on pages 16 and 17 of this Integrated Report of which this notice forms part, collectively and 
individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information pertaining to special resolution 1 and certify that, to the best 
of their knowledge and belief, there are no facts that have been omitted which would make any statement false or misleading, and that 
all reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts have been made and that this notice contains all information required by law and the 
Listings Requirements of the JSE.

Material changes
Other than the facts and developments reported on in this Integrated Report, there have been no material changes in the financial or 
trading position of the Company and its subsidiaries since the date of signature of the Audit Report and up to the date of this notice.

Electronic communications
Please note that in terms of the Companies Act and the Listings Requirements of the JSE, you may elect to receive shareholder 
communications and notices from ARB electronically. If you make this election, notices to shareholders of the Company will be sent to 
you by email, which may include a notice of the availability of documents, records, statements or other shareholder communications 
on the Company’s website, which you will then be able to access through the internet. If you do not make this election, printed 
communications from the Company will be posted to you at your registered address. 

Opting to receive information electronically will provide you with faster access to the latest information about ARB, whilst also saving 
costs for the Company and being more environmentally responsible. If you wish to receive future shareholder communications 
electronically, please complete and return the attached form to our transfer secretaries. 

By order of the Board

Mario Louw
Company Secretary

17 August 2017

Registered office
10 Mack Road
Prospecton
Durban, 4110

(PO Box 26426, Isipingo Beach, 4115)

Telephone: +27 31 910 0200

Transfer secretaries
Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd
Rosebank Towers
15 Biermann Avenue, Rosebank
Johannesburg, 2001

(PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107)

Telephone: +27 11 370 5000
Fax: +27 11 688 5248
Email: ecomms@computershare.co.za
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ARB HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Registration number: 1986/002975/06)

Share code: ARH

ISIN: ZAE000109435

(“ARB” or “the Company”)

ELECTION TO RECEIVE ELECTRONIC SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS
Please note that in terms of the Companies Act and the Listings Requirements of the JSE, you may elect to receive shareholder 

communications and notices from ARB electronically. If you make this election, notices to shareholders of the Company will be sent to 

you by email, which may include a notice of the availability of documents, records, statements or other shareholder communications 

on the Company’s website, which you will then be able to access through the internet. If you do not make this election, printed 

communications from the Company will be posted to you at your registered address.

Full name of shareholder*

Reference number*

Telephone numbers (office) (home) (cellular)

Email address

I elect to receive notices and other shareholder communications electronically:

Signature

Date

* Can be obtained from the envelope in which you received the 2015 Integrated Report or please call the transfer secretaries on +27 11 370 5000 for details.

The completed form should be returned to the transfer secretaries via post or email:

Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd

PO Box 61051

Marshalltown

2107

Email: ecomms@computershare.co.za

Telephone: +27 11 370 5000

Fax: +27 11 688 5248

ELECTRONIC RECEIPT OF COMMUNICATIONS AND NOTICES
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ARB HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Registration number: 1986/002975/06)

Share code: ARH

ISIN: ZAE000109435

(“ARB” or “the Company”)

For use at the AGM of the shareholders of the Company to be held at the Company’s registered office located at 10 Mack Road, Prospecton, Durban, 4110 on 

8 November 2017 at 10:00 and at any adjournment thereof.

For use by the holders of the Company’s certificated ordinary shares (“certificated shareholders”) and/or dematerialised ordinary shares held through a Central 

Securities Depository Participant (“CSDP”) or broker who have selected own-name registration (“own-name dematerialised shareholders”). 

Not for use by the holders of the Company’s dematerialised ordinary shares who are not own-name dematerialised shareholders. Such shareholders must contact 

their CSDP or broker timeously if they wish to attend and vote at the AGM in person and request that they be issued with the necessary written authorisation to do 

so, or provide their CSDP or broker with their voting instructions should they not wish to attend the AGM in person but wish to be represented thereat.

I/We (full name in block letters)

of (address)

being the registered holder(s) of ordinary shares in the issued share capital of the Company, do hereby appoint:

1. of or failing him/her,

2. of or failing him/her,

3. the Chairman of the AGM,

as my/our proxy to act for me/us and on my/our behalf at the AGM of the Company which will be held for the purpose of considering and, if deemed fit, passing, 

with or without modification, the special and ordinary resolutions to be proposed thereat and at any adjournment thereof, and to vote for and/or against the special 

and ordinary resolutions and/or abstain from voting in respect of the ordinary shares registered in my/our name(s), in accordance with the following instructions:

Number of ordinary shares/votes

In favour of* Against* Abstain*

Ordinary resolutions

1. To receive the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

2. To approve a general authority to issue shares for cash

3. To place unissued shares under the Directors’ control

4. To re-elect Ralph Patmore as a Director of the Company

5. To elect the Audit Committee members, each by separate vote:

 5.1 James Dixon (Chairman)

 5.2 Simon Downes

 5.3 Ralph Patmore

6. To reappoint the Auditor and fix their remuneration

7. To authorise Directors and/or the Company Secretary to act and sign documentation

8. To endorse the ARB remuneration policy – non-binding advisory vote

Special resolutions

1. To approve a general authority to repurchase the Company shares

2. To approve the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors for the year ended 30 June 2018

3. To approve the granting of financial assistance to related and inter-related companies and corporations

*  Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate spaces above how you wish your votes to be cast. If no indication is given, the proxy will be entitled to vote or abstain as he/she 
deems fit.

Signed at (place)  on (date) 2017 

Signature

Assisted by (where applicable)

Please read the notes on the reverse side.

FORM OF PROXY
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1. This form of proxy is to be completed only by those shareholders who:

a. hold shares in certificated form; or

b. are recorded in the sub-register in electronic form in their own name.

2. Shareholders who have dematerialised their shares, other than own-name dematerialised shareholders, and who wish to attend 

the AGM in person must contact their Central Securities Depository Participant (“CSDP”) or broker who will furnish them with the 

necessary written authority to attend the AGM, or they must instruct their CSDP or broker as to how they wish to vote in this regard. 

This must be done in terms of the agreement entered into between the shareholders and their CSDP or broker.

3. Each shareholder is entitled to appoint one or more proxies (who need not be shareholder(s) of the Company) to attend, speak and, 

on a poll, vote in place of that shareholder at the AGM.

4. A shareholder may insert the name of a proxy or the names of two alternate proxies of the shareholder’s choice in the space 

provided, with or without deleting “the Chairman of the AGM”. The person whose name stands first on the form of proxy and who 

is present at the AGM will be entitled to act as proxy to the exclusion of those whose names follow.

5. A shareholder’s instructions to the proxy must be indicated by the insertion of the relevant number of votes exercisable by that 

shareholder in the appropriate box provided. Failure to comply with the above will be deemed to authorise the Chairman of the 

AGM, if the Chairman is the authorised proxy, to vote in favour of the ordinary and special resolutions at the AGM, or any other 

proxy to vote or to abstain from voting at the AGM as he/she deems fit, in respect of all the shareholder’s votes exercisable thereat.

6. A shareholder or his/her proxy is not obliged to vote in respect of all the ordinary shares held by such shareholder or represented 

by such proxy, but the total number of votes for or against the resolutions or in respect of which any abstention is recorded may not 

exceed the total number of votes to which the shareholder or his/her proxy is entitled.

7. Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing this form of proxy in a representative capacity must be attached 

to this form of proxy, unless previously recorded by the Company’s transfer secretaries or waived by the Chairman of the AGM.

8. The Chairman of the AGM may reject or accept any form of proxy which is completed and/or received other than in accordance with 

these instructions and notes, provided that he is satisfied as to the manner in which a shareholder wishes to vote.

9. Any alterations or corrections to this form of proxy must be initialled by the signatory(ies).

10. The completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preclude the relevant shareholder from attending the AGM and speaking 

and voting in person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms hereof.

11. A minor must be assisted by his/her parent/guardian unless the relevant documents establishing his/her legal capacity are 

produced or have been registered by the Company’s transfer secretaries.

12. Where there are joint holders of any shares, only that holder whose name appears first in the register in respect of such shares 

need sign this form of proxy.

13. Completed forms of proxy must be lodged with the transfer secretaries at the address provided below at least 48 hours prior to the 

AGM. If this deadline is not met, the shareholder or proxy may bring it to the meeting, but will be required to provide proof (sufficient 

to the chairman of the meeting) of the validity of the proxy and the identification of the bearer.

ADDITIONAL FORMS OF PROXY ARE AVAILABLE FROM THE TRANSFER SECRETARIES ON REQUEST.

Transfer secretaries

Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd

15 Biermann Avenue, Rosebank

Johannesburg, 2001

(PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107)

Telephone: +27 11 370 5000

Fax: +27 11 688 5248

Email: ecomms@computershare.co.za

NOTES TO THE FORM OF PROXY
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Company registration number
1986/002975/06

Share code
ARH

ISIN
ZAE000109435

Website
www.arbhold.co.za 

Registered and corporate office
10 Mack Road

Prospecton

Durban, 4110

(PO Box 26426, Isipingo Beach, 4115)

Telephone: +27 31 910 0200

Company Secretary
Mario Louw

11 Larch Nook

Zwartkop X4

Centurion, 0046

(PO Box 23305, Gezina, 0031)

Telephone: +27 12 663 5244

Reporting accountants and Auditor
PKF Durban

2nd Floor, 12 on Palm Boulevard

Gateway

Umhlanga Rocks, 4319

(PO Box 1858, Durban, 4000)

Telephone: +27 31 573 5000

Commercial bankers
Nedbank Ltd

90 Braam Fischer Road

Kingsmead

Durban, 4001

(PO Box 3560, Durban, 4000)

Telephone: +27 31 364 1111

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Transfer secretaries
Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd

Rosebank Towers

15 Biermann Avenue, Rosebank

Johannesburg, 2001

(PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107)

Telephone: +27 11 370 5000

Sponsor
Grindrod Bank Ltd

3rd Floor, Grindrod Towers

8A Protea Place

Sandton

Johannesburg, 2146

(PO Box 78011, Sandton, 2146)

Telephone: +27 11 459 1860 

Attorneys
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Johannesburg, 2196

(PO Box 61771, Marshalltown, 2107)
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AGM Annual General Meeting (of shareholders)

ARB Electrical Wholesalers ARB Electrical Wholesalers (Pty) Ltd – 74% held subsidiary and part of the Electrical Division

ARB IT Solutions ARB IT Solutions (Pty) Ltd – 100 subsidiary of ARB that provides IT services to the Electrical 
Group and forms part of the Corporate Division

ARB, the Group, the Company ARB Holdings Ltd

Batsomi Power Batsomi Power (Pty) Ltd – 76% B-BBBE shareholder of ARB Electrical Wholesalers

B-BBEE Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment

CED CED – Consolidated Electrical Distributor (Pty) Ltd – CHINT Distributors and part of the 
Electrical Division

CFL Compact Fluorescent Lamp – form of energy saving luminaire (light bulb)

CHINT Zhejiang CHINT Electrics Co. Ltd, the largest manufacturer and seller of low-voltage electrical 
products in China

CPI Consumer Price Inflation

CSI Corporate Social Investment – investing in the local community with money and time as part of 
“good corporate citizenship”

DIY Do-it-yourself

Elektro Vroomen Elektro Vroomen (Pty) Ltd – 100% subsidiary of ARB Electrical Wholesalers and part of the 
Electrical Division

ERP Enterprise Resource Planning – a component of a broader IT solution

Eurolux Eurolux (Pty) Ltd – 60% held subsidiary and part of the Lighting Division

IEC International Elektro-technical Commission – Belgian-based international standard setting 
authority, used as the base for new RSA standards

JSE JSE Ltd – JSE Securities Exchange

LOA Letter Of Authority – issued every three years by the NRCS as evidence of compliance with 
applicable South African standards

LED Light Emitting Diode – type of luminaire (light bulb)

NCI Non-controlling interest – outside/minority shareholders in the Group

NQF National Qualification Framework – RSA national education qualification standard benchmark

NRCS National Regulator Compliance Standards – incorporated by the NRCS Act 2008 to enforce RSA 
standards such as the SABS standards

OEM Original Equipment Manufacturer

OHL Overhead Line – a form of power connectivity using suspended (aluminium) conductor and the 
name of a department in the Electrical Division

RCC Regulators Certificate of Compliance – confirming compliance with SANS standards (such as 
SANS 10142 wiring code)

RCP Republic Price Copper – the industry standard measure of the copper price being the monthly 
average daily price of copper on the LME (London Metals Exchange) multiplied by the daily 
rand/dollar exchange price

SABS South African Bureau of Standards

SADC Southern African Development Community – covering South Africa, Botswana, Lesotho, 
Swaziland and Namibia

SANAS South African National Accreditation System – national body that oversees standards 
compliance (such as B-BBEE certification, calibration laboratories)

SANS South African National Standards – developed by the SABS, reviewed by the NRCS and gazetted 
by the Department of Trade and Industry

SENS Securities Exchange News Service – JSE automated news service

VWAP Volume weighted average (share) price
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